SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

FORM 424B3

Prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3)

Filing Date: 2011-08-15
SEC Accession No. 0001104659-11-047016

(HTML Version on secdatabase.com)

FILER

QUALINK INC

CIK:1029389| IRS No.: 391758994 | State of Incorp.:WI | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-19 | Film No.: 111037283
SIC: 7320 Consumer credit reporting, collection agencies

OSI PORTFOLIO SERVICES INC

CIK:1029715| IRS No.: 510369044 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-25 | Film No.: 111037282
SIC: 8741 Management services

COMPASS INTERNATIONAL SERVICES CORP

CIK:1046817| IRS No.: 223540815 | State of Incorp..DE
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-38 | Film No.: 111037270
SIC: 7330 Mailing, reproduction, commercial art & photography

OSI OUTSOURCING SERVICES INC

CIK:1058624| IRS No.: 133861550 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-26 | Film No.: 111037269
SIC: 8741 Management services

TRANSWORLD SYSTEMS INC

CIK:1058626| IRS No.: 941728881 | State of Incorp.:CA | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-18 | Film No.: 111037268

FCA Leasing, Inc.

CIK:1396669| IRS No.: 510277275
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-07 | Film No.: 111037267

AC Financial Services, Inc.

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
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Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

2520 SOUTH 170TH STREET
NEW BERLIN WI 53151-0955
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/O NCO GROUP

2425 COMMERCE AVE.,
BLDG. 2100, STE. 100
DULUTH GA 30096
215-441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

4275 BRIDGE VIEW DRIVE
NORTH CHARLESTON SC
29405

215-441-3000

Business Address

2235 MERCURY WAY
SUITE 275

SANTA ROSA CA 95407
215-441-3000

Business Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD

HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

800
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CIK:1396710| IRS No.: 680623013

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-06 | Film No.:

NCOP Nevada Holdings, Inc.
CIK:1396891| IRS No.: 522300749

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-44 | Film No.:

NCOP/Marlin, Inc.
CIK:1396892| IRS No.: 522352960

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-45 | Film No.:

NCOP Services, Inc.
CIK:1396894] IRS No.: 522300752

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-46 | Film No.:

NCO ACI Holdings, Inc.
CIK:1396896| IRS No.: 581893956

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-01 | Film No.:

NCO Financial Systems, Inc.
CIK:1396897| IRS No.: 231670927

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-02 | Film No.:

NCO Customer Management, Inc.
CIK:1396898| IRS No.: 232250564

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-03 | Film No.:

NCO Support Services, LLC
CIK:1396899| IRS No.: 270105477

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-04 | Film No.:

NCO Teleservices, Inc.
CIK:1396900| IRS No.: 232878693

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-05 | Film No.:

RMH Teleservices Asia Pacific, Inc.
CIK:1397246| IRS No.: 320047775

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-39 | Film No.:

FCA Funding, Inc.
CIK:1397247| IRS No.: 232984383

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-43 | Film No.:

ALW Financial, Inc.
CIK:1397293| IRS No.: 205819309

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-42 | Film No.:

NCO Holdings, Inc.
CIK:1397294| IRS No.: 232984387

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-41 | Film No.:

NCOP Financing, Inc.
CIK:1397295| IRS No.: 510407449

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-40 | Film No.:

NCO Funding, Inc.
CIK:1397531| IRS No.: 510378281

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-36 | Film No.:

NCO Group International, Inc.

111037266

111037265

111037264

111037261

111037262

111037260

111037259

111037258

111037253

111037252

111037251

111037250

111037249

111037246

111037245

WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address

3763 HOWARD HUGHES
PARKWAY, SUITE 170
LAS VEGAS NV 89109

Mailing Address

3763 HOWARD HUGHES
PARKWAY, SUITE 170
LAS VEGAS NV 89109

Mailing Address

1804 WASHINGTON BLVD,

DEPT. 200
BALTIMORE MD 21230

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address
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WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3112

Business Address

3763 HOWARD HUGHES
PARKWAY, SUITE 170
LAS VEGAS NV 89109
(702) 836-3500

Business Address

3763 HOWARD HUGHES
PARKWAY, SUITE 170
LAS VEGAS NV 89109
(702) 836-3500

Business Address
1804 WASHINGTON BLVD,
DEPT. 200
BALTIMORE MD 21230
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3112

Business Address

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3112

Business Address

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3112

Business Address

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3112

Business Address

800

WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3112

Business Address
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CIK:1397532| IRS No.: 050614768
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-37 | Film No.: 111037242

NCO Group, Inc.

CIK:1397772| IRS No.: 020786880 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514 | Film No.: 111037208

SIC: 7320 Consumer credit reporting, collection agencies

JDR Holdings, Inc.

CIK:1397773| IRS No.: 223264150

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-34 | Film No.: 111037241

NCO Portfolio Management, Inc.

CIK:1397774| IRS No.: 270084103
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-35 | Film No.: 111037240

Compass Teleservices, Inc.

CIK:1397958| IRS No.: 222744501

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-33 | Film No.: 111037236
NCOP IX, LLC

CIK:1398740| IRS No.: 205995942
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-31 | Film No.: 111037234

AssetCare, Inc.

CIK:1398741| IRS No.: 204392053
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-32 | Film No.: 111037233

Coast to Coast Consulting, LLC

CIK:1431655| IRS No.: 431917687 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-30 | Film No.: 111037232

Greystone Business Group, LLC

CIK:1431656| IRS No.: 010585067 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-29 | Film No.: 111037231

Oid OSILLC

CIK:1431657| IRS No.: 800123678 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-28 | Film No.: 111037230

OSI Outsourcing Services International, Inc.

CIK:1431658| IRS No.: 900209538 | State of Incorp.:WI | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-27 | Film No.: 111037229

OSI Recovery Solutions, Inc.

CIK:1431659| IRS No.: 431901709 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-24 | Film No.: 111037228

OSISPELLC

CIK:1431660| IRS No.: 000000000 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-23 | Film No.: 111037226

Outsourcing Solutions Inc.

CIK:1431662| IRS No.: 200407098 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-22 | Film No.: 111037224

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3112

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE1201 MARKET STREET, SUITE

800
WILMINGTON DE 19801

Mailing Address
507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

3763 HOWARD HUGHES
PARKWAY, SUITE 170
LAS VEGAS NV 89169

Mailing Address

5100 PEACHTREE
INDUSTRIAL BLVD.
NORCROSS GA 30071

Mailing Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/0O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
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800
WILMINGTON DE 19801
(302) 428-3113

Business Address

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

3763 HOWARD HUGHES
PARKWAY, SUITE 170
LAS VEGAS NV 89169
702-836-3507

Business Address

5100 PEACHTREE
INDUSTRIAL BLVD.
NORCROSS GA 30071
(215) 441-3000

Business Address

C/0O NCO GROUP

4025 WOODLAND PARK
BLVD., SUITE 180
ARLINGTON TX 76013
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

390 SOUTH WOODS MILL RD.,
SUITE 350

CHESTERFIELD MO 63017
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0O NCO GROUP

390 S. WOODS MILL ROAD,
SUITE 350

CHESTERFIELD MO 63017
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/O NCO GROUP

2520 SOUTH 170TH STREET
NEW BERLIN WI 52151-0955
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

2520 SOUTH 170TH ST.
NEW BERLIN WI 53151-0955
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

390 S. WOODS MILL ROAD,
SUITE 350

CHESTERFIELD MO 63017
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

390 SOUTH WOODS MILL RD.,
SUITE 350
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Pacific Software Consulting, LLC

CIK:1431663| IRS No.: 431917898 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-21 | Film No.: 111037221

PAE Leasing, LLC

CIK:1431664| IRS No.: 431917684 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-20 | Film No.: 111037220

Union Settlement Administrator Holdco, Inc.

CIK:1431668| IRS No.: 870714414 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-17 | Film No.: 111037218

Union Settlement Administrator, Inc.

CIK:1431669| IRS No.: 134269978 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-16 | Film No.: 111037217

University Accounting Service, LLC

CIK:1431670| IRS No.: 391992489 | State of Incorp.:WI | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-15 | Film No.: 111037216

Credit Receivables CORP |

CIK:1431671| IRS No.: 431916266 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-14 | Fiim No.: 111037215

Systems & Services Technology, Inc.

CIK:1431672| IRS No.: 260590353 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-13 | Film No.: 111037214

Tempest Recovery Services, Inc.

CIK:1431673| IRS No.: 431816131 | State of Incorp.:MO | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-12 | Film No.: 111037213

NCOP X, LLC

CIK:1431674| IRS No.: 371557594 | State of Incorp.:NV | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-11 | Film No.: 111037212

Total Debt Management, Inc.
CIK:1486993| IRS No.: 582485151 | State of Incorp.:GA | Fiscal Year End: 1231

Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-10 | Film No.: 111037211
NCOP XIlI, LLC

CIK:1486994| IRS No.: 271342237 | State of Incorp.:NV | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-09 | Film No.: 111037210

NCOP XI, LLC

CIK:1486995| IRS No.: 263893942 | State of Incorp.:NV | Fiscal Year End: 1231
Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-173514-08 | Film No.: 111037209

Mailing Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address

C/O NCO GROUP

507 PRUDENTIAL ROAD
HORSHAM PA 19044

Mailing Address
6356 CORLEY ROAD
NORCROSS GA 30071

Mailing Address

2520 SAINT ROSE PARKWAY
SUITE 212

HENDERSON NV 89074

Mailing Address

2520 SAINT ROSE PARKWAY
SUITE 212

HENDERSON NV 89074
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CHESTERFIELD MO 63017
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

1580 SOUTH MAIN ST., SUITE
105

BOERNE TX 78006
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

4025 WOODLAND PARK
BLVD., SUITE 180
ARLINGTON TX 76013
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0O NCO GROUP

390 S. WOODS MILL ROAD,
SUITE 350

CHESTERFIELD MO 63017
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/O NCO GROUP

390 S. WOODS MILL ROAD,
SUITE 350

CHESTERFIELD MO 63017
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

2520 SOUTH 170TH ST.
NEW BERLIN WI 53151-0955
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP
4315 PICKETT ROAD
ST. JOSEPH MO 64503
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP

1717 WEST 7TH STREET
JOPLIN MO 64801
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/0 NCO GROUP
4315 PICKETT ROAD
ST. JOSEPH MO 64503
215-441-3000

Business Address

C/O NCO GROUP, HUGHES
CENTER, STE. 170

3763 HOWARD HUGHES
PARKWAY

LAS VEGAS NV 89109
215-441-3000

Business Address

6356 CORLEY ROAD
NORCROSS GA 30071
1-800-220-2274

Business Address

2520 SAINT ROSE PARKWAY
SUITE 212

HENDERSON NV 89074
1-800-220-2274

Business Address

2520 SAINT ROSE PARKWAY
SUITE 212

HENDERSON NV 89074
1-800-220-2274
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Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3)
File Number 333-173514; 333-165975; 333-158745; 333-150885

NCO

G R O U P

NCO GROUP, INC.

Supplement No. 5
(To prospectus dated April 27, 2011)

$165,000,000 Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2013
$200,000,000 11.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014
This prospectus supplement No. 5 supplements and amends the prospectus dated April 27, 2011, as supplemented and amended by
prospectus supplement No. 1 dated May 13, 2011, prospectus supplement No. 2 dated May 31, 2011, prospectus supplement No. 3
dated July 8, 2011 and prospectus supplement No. 4 dated August 11, 2011 (the “Prospectus”). This prospectus supplement should be

read in conjunction with the Prospectus and may not be delivered or utilized without the Prospectus.

On August 15, 2011, NCO Group, Inc. filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission its quarterly report for the quarter ended June 30,
2011.

The date of this prospectus supplement is August 15, 2011.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark one)
Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011

or
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O Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Numbers 333-173514; 333-165975; 333-158745; 333-150885

NCO GROUP, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE 02-0786880
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
507 Prudential Road, Horsham, Pennsylvania 19044
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

215-441-3000

(Registrant’ s telephone number, including area code)

Not Applicable

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes XI No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes XI No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller

LRI

reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the

Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O

Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company O

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes OO No

The number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’ s classes of common stock as of August 12, 2011 was: 2,960,847 shares of

Class A common stock, $0.01 par value and 532,637 shares of Class L common stock, $0.01 par value.
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Part I. Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements

NCO GROUP, INC.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

June 30, December 31,
2011 2010
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (includes cash and cash equivalents of consolidated variable interest
entities: 2011, $604; 2010, $357) $ 18,021 $ 33,077
Accounts receivable, trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,219 and $5,796,
respectively 187,073 171,350
Purchased accounts receivable, current portion, net of allowance for impairment of $91,751 and
$158,694, respectively (includes purchased accounts receivable of consolidated variable
interest entities: 2011, $6,801; 2010, $8,307) 21,857 29,683
Deferred income taxes 9,137 9,084
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 67,836 51,538
Total current assets 303,924 294,732
Funds held on behalf of clients (note 8)
Property and equipment, net 96,016 99,089
Other assets:
Goodwill 487,402 480,757
Trade name, net of accumulated amortization 83,306 83,508
Customer relationships and other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization 168,031 195,071
Purchased accounts receivable, net of current portion (includes purchased accounts receivable of
consolidated variable interest entities: 2011, $2,352; 2010, $13,973) 7,614 48,924
Deferred income taxes 4,005 4,249
Other assets 30,803 31,383
Total other assets 781,161 843,892
Total assets $ 1,181,101  $ 1,237,713
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Long-term debt, current portion $ 11,883 $ 22,124
Income taxes payable 3,093 4,662
Accounts payable 19,722 19,787
Accrued expenses (includes accrued expenses of consolidated variable interest entities: 2011,
$227; 2010, $666) 86,855 91,280
Accrued compensation and related expenses 44,532 36,578
Deferred revenue, current portion 29,761 31,299
Deferred income taxes 1,186 1,158
Total current liabilities 197,032 206,888
Funds held on behalf of clients (note 8)
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion 884,386 867,229
Deferred income taxes (includes deferred income taxes of consolidated variable interest entities:
2011, $2,134; 2010, $2,135) 48,952 45,763
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 618 696
Other long-term liabilities 35,002 30,211
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Commitments and contingencies (note 15)

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 7,500 shares authorized, 3,898 and 3,626 shares

issued and outstanding, respectively 39 36
Class L common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 800 shares authorized, 533 and 400 shares
issued and outstanding, respectively 5 4
Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 4,500 shares authorized, 2,961 shares issued
and outstanding 30 30
Additional paid-in capital 767,866 764,535
Accumulated other comprehensive income 7,581 5,043
Accumulated deficit (762,086) (689,242)
Total NCO Group, Inc. stockholders’ equity 13,435 80,406
Noncontrolling interests 1,676 6,520
Total stockholders’ equity 15,111 86,926
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 1,181,101  $ 1,237,713
See accompanying notes.
1
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NCO GROUP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)
For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues:
Services $ 296,206 $ 306,988 594,650 §$ 629,914
Portfolio (5,128) 11,627 (13,782) 27,924
Reimbursable costs and fees 82,783 82,429 167,716 166,775
Total revenues 373,861 401,044 748,584 824,613
Operating costs and expenses:
Payroll and related expenses 170,850 175,651 339,987 361,919
Selling, general and administrative expenses 99,283 113,254 201,184 224,786
Reimbursable costs and fees 82,783 82,429 167,716 166,775
Depreciation and amortization expense 25,828 27,357 51,877 55,087
Restructuring charges 3,076 4,949 15,252 6,383
Total operating costs and expenses 381,820 403,640 776,016 814,950
(Loss) income from operations (7,959) (2,596) (27,432) 9,663
Other income (expense):
Interest and investment income 102 185 201 273
Interest expense (21,165) (22,156) (42,993) (45,757)
Other (expense) income, net 47) 1,113 (241) 1,069
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Total other income (expense) (21,110) (20,858) (43,033) (44,415)
Loss before income taxes (29,069) (23,454) (70,465) (34,752)
Income tax expense 3,235 1,865 5,140 4,905
Net loss (32,304) (25,319) (75,605) (39,657)
Less: Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling

interests (651) 203 (2,761) 1,137
Net loss attributable to NCO Group, Inc. $ (31,653) $ (25,522) (72,844)  $ (40,794)
See accompanying notes.

2
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NCO GROUP, INC
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)
For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss (75,605) $ (39,657)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 51,877 55,087

Provision for doubtful accounts 592 672

(Recoveries) impairments of purchased accounts receivable (1,788) 139

Write-down of purchased accounts receivable 29,819 =

Noncash interest 4,047 3,773

Noncash net (gains) losses on derivative instruments (195) 86

Deferred income taxes 2,801 1,386

Other 3,061 1,188

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable, trade (3,152) 10,160
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,961) (1,754)

Income taxes payable (1,764) 3,903

Other assets and liabilities (12,170) 1,403

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (5,438) 36,386

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of accounts receivable (1,081) (8,953)

Collections applied to principal of purchased accounts receivable 18,032 35,636

Proceeds from sales of purchased accounts receivable 4,300 -
Purchases of property and equipment (13,063) (12,247)
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Net cash paid related to acquisitions (20,823) -
Other 733 1,331
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (11,902) 15,767

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of notes payable (869) (8,481)
Net borrowings (repayments) under revolving credit facility 36,000 (17,000)
Repayment of borrowings under senior term loan (27,766) (34,027)
Payment of fees related to debt (2,784) (2,758)
Return of investment in subsidiary to noncontrolling interests (2,083) (2,736)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,498 (65,002)
Effect of exchange rate on cash (214) (629)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (15,056) (13,478)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 33,077 39,221
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 18,021 $ 25,743

See accompanying notes.
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NCO GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. Nature of Operations:

NCO Group, Inc. is a holding company and conducts substantially all of its business operations through its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Company” or “NCQO”). NCO is an international provider of business process outsourcing solutions, primarily focused on accounts receivable
management (“ARM”) and customer relationship management (“CRM”). NCO provides services through over 100 offices throughout North
America, Asia, Europe and Australia. The Company provides services to more than 14,000 active clients, including many of the Fortune 500,
supporting a broad spectrum of industries, including financial services, telecommunications, healthcare, retail and commercial, utilities,
education and government, technology and transportation/logistics services. These clients are primarily located throughout North America,
Europe and Australia. Excluding reimbursable costs and fees, the Company’ s largest client during the six months ended June 30, 2011, was in
the telecommunications sector and represented 7.0 percent of the Company’ s consolidated revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2011.

Historically, the Company’ s Portfolio Management business has also purchased and collected past due consumer accounts receivable from
consumer creditors. Beginning in 2009, the Company significantly reduced its purchases of accounts receivable and made a decision to
minimize further investments in the future. This decision resulted from declines in liquidation rates, competition for purchased accounts
receivable and the continued uncertainty of collectability, as well as potential regulatory changes affecting the purchased accounts receivable

business.

In April 2011, Portfolio Management sold portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book value of $5.0 million. In August 2011,
Portfolio Management signed an agreement to sell portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book value of $16.9 million, which is
expected to close in August 2011 and is subject to customary closing conditions. In connection with the sales, the Company recorded write-
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downs of the value of the purchased accounts receivable of $18.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2011, and $11.2 million
during the three months ended June 30, 2011.

The Company’ s business consists of three operating segments: ARM, CRM and Portfolio Management.
2. Accounting Policies:
Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries and entities controlled by the Company. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

The Company also considers whether any of its investments represent a variable interest entity (““VIE”) that is required to be consolidated by
the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is the entity that has both (i) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most
significantly impact the VIE’ s economic performance, and (ii) the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could
potentially be significant to the VIE. A VIE is an entity for which the primary beneficiary’ s interest in the entity can change with changes in
factors other than the amount of investment in the entity.

The Company has investments in VIEs that purchase portfolios of purchased accounts receivable. Based on the Company’ s significant
participation in the VIEs’ profits or losses and its ability to direct the activities of the VIEs, the Company consolidates these VIEs as it is
considered the primary beneficiary. The aggregate assets of the VIEs, that can only be used to settle obligations of the VIEs, and liabilities of
the VIEs, for which beneficial interest holders do not have recourse to the Company’ s general credit, are presented on the balance sheet.
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2. Accounting Policies (continued):

Interim Financial Information:

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and
footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for annual financial statements. The
December 31, 2010 balance sheet was derived from the consolidated audited financial statements of the Company, but does not include all
disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring adjustments, except as otherwise disclosed herein) considered necessary for a fair
presentation have been included. Because of the seasonal nature of the Company’ s business, operating results for the three-month and six-
month period ended June 30, 2011, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2011,

or for any other interim period.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’ s consolidated financial
statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes.

Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Reimbursable Costs and Fees:

During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company identified $58.3 million of reimbursable costs and fees received from clients associated with
certain contractual arrangements acquired in connection with the acquisition of TSYS Total Debt Management that were incorrectly recorded
on a net basis, as an offset to selling, general and administrative expenses. Revenue should have included these reimbursable costs and fees,
with an equal and offsetting amount charged to operating expenses, due to the fact that the Company acted as principal and assumed overall
risk in the transactions under these contractual arrangements. The adjustment was made in the fourth quarter of 2010 and reflected in the
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010. The adjustment was not material to the previously issued financial statements.
Revenue and operating expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 have been revised to reflect the reimbursable costs and fees
in both revenue and operating expenses in the statement of operations. The following summarizes the impact of this revision on the statement
of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 (in thousands):

For the three Months Ended June 30, 2010 For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
As As
Previously As Previously As
Reported Adjustments Adjusted Reported Adjustments Adjusted
Total revenues $ 386,169 $ 14,875 $ 401,044 $ 799237 $ 25376 $ 824,613
Total operating costs and expenses 388,765 14,875 403,640 789,574 25,376 814,950
(Loss) income from operations (2,596) = (2,596) 9,663 = 9,663
Loss before income taxes (23,454) - (23,454) (34,752) - (34,752)
Net loss attributable to NCO
Group, Inc. (25,522) — (25,522) (40,794) — (40,794)
5
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3. Restructuring Charges:

The Company has several restructuring plans under which it has recorded restructuring charges, primarily in conjunction with streamlining the
cost structure of the Company’ s operations. These charges primarily related to the elimination of certain redundant facilities, severance costs
and professional fees. The severance accrual recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2011, included approximately $3.4 million related to
termination benefits provided to the Company’ s former President and Chief Executive Officer, who remains as the Company’ s Chairman of
the Board of Directors. The Company currently expects to pay the remaining severance balance through 2012 and the remaining lease balance
through 2016. The following presents the activity in the accruals recorded for restructuring charges (amounts in thousands):

Leases Severance Other Total
Balance at December 31,

2010 $ 12,428 $ 1,555 § - 3 13,983
Accruals 9,331 4,163 1,758 15,252
Cash payments (4,710) (2,686) (673) (8,069)
Property and equipment

write-offs (145) - - (145)
Balance at June 30, 2011 $ 16,904 $ 3,032 $ 1,085 $ 21,021

4. Business Combinations:

On May 19, 2011, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Protocol Direct Marketing, Inc. and certain related entities
(“Protocol”), a provider of BPO solutions specializing in contact center services, for approximately $20.8 million in cash, subject to certain
post-closing adjustments, and the issuance of 9,812 shares of Series B-2 19 percent Preferred Stock and 132,823 shares of Class L Common
Stock valued at $3.1 million. Based on preliminary estimates, the Company allocated $5.1 million of the purchase price to customer

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

relationships, with an estimated useful life of 5 years, and recorded goodwill of $6.2 million in the CRM segment. As a result of the

acquisition, the Company expects to enhance its CRM market penetration and capabilities, and to expand its current customer base.

5. Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue primarily relates to prepaid fees for ARM collection and letter services for which revenue is recognized when the services

are provided or the time period for which the Company is obligated to provide the services has expired. The following summarizes the change

in the balance of deferred revenue (amounts in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 31,995
Additions 17,913
Revenue recognized (19,558)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 29
Balance at June 30, 2011 $ 30,379

6. Fair Value:

Recurring Measurement:

The Company uses various valuation techniques and assumptions when measuring fair value of its assets and liabilities. The Company utilizes
market data or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks
inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable (“Level 1), market corroborated (“Level 2”), or
generally unobservable (“Level 3”). The significant majority of the fair value amounts included in the Company’ s current period earnings
resulted from Level 2 fair value methodologies; that is, the Company is able to value the assets and liabilities based on observable market data
for similar instruments (the “market approach™). The Company applied an income approach to amounts included in its current period earnings
resulting from Level 3 fair value methodologies.
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6.  Fair Value (continued):

Recurring Measurement (continued):
The financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. The Company’ s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may
affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels. The following table sets forth,
by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Company’ s financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(amounts in thousands):

At Fair Value as of

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Forward exchange contracts $ - 3 116 $ - 3 116 § - 3 - $ - $ -
Total assets $ - 3 116 $ - 3 116 $ - 3 - 3 - 3 -

Liabilities:
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Interest rate swaps $ - 8 - $ - $ - 8 - $ 148 § - § 1,489

Forward exchange contracts - 349 - 349 - - - -
Embedded derivatives = = 1,502 1,502 = = 2,486 2,486
Total liabilities $ - 3 3499 § 1502 $ 1,851 $ - $ 1489 $ 2486 $ 3,975

During the six months ended June 30, 2011, there were no transfers in or out of the Company’ s Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 fair value

measurements.
The Company’ s interest rate swaps matured during the first quarter of 2011.

To value the foreign currency forward exchange contracts, the Company obtains quotes from its counterparties. The Company considers such
quotes to be Level 2 measurements. To gain assurance that such quotes reflect market participant views, the Company independently validates
the relevant exchange rates of its forward exchange contracts.

Embedded derivatives represent the contingent payment provision embedded in the Company’ s nonrecourse credit facility related to
purchased accounts receivable and the sellers’ participation in collections that are in excess of minimum targets for certain portfolios of
purchased accounts receivable. The Company values these embedded derivatives based on the present value of expected cash flows. Inputs
used to value these embedded derivatives are considered Level 3 measurements because they are unobservable. Changes in the fair market
value of the embedded derivatives are recorded in interest expense on the statement of operations.

The following summarizes the change in the fair value of the embedded derivatives (amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 2,383 $ 2,593 $ 2,486 $ 3,306
Accrued interest additions 110 184 235 409
Payments (371) (376) (760) (814)
Change in fair value (620) (261) (459) (761)
Balance at end of period $ 1,502 $ 2,140 $ 1,502 $ 2,140
7
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6.  Fair Value (continued):
Non-Recurring Measurement:
The Company has goodwill and other intangible assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis and are adjusted to fair value
only when their carrying values exceed their fair values. Inputs used to value these assets are considered Level 3 measurements because they

are unobservable.

During the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, there were no adjustments to fair value as there were no indicators that would have
required interim testing. The Company performs its annual testing of indefinite-lived intangible assets during the fourth quarter of each year.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which it is practicable to
estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade Accounts Receivable, and Accounts Payable:

The carrying amount reported in the balance sheets approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Purchased Accounts Receivable:

The Company records purchased accounts receivable at cost, which is discounted from the contractual receivable balance. The carrying value
of purchased accounts receivable is estimated based upon the Company’ s estimates of future cash flows and the internal rate of return
(“IRR™) derived at acquisition. In April 2011, Portfolio Management sold portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book value of
$5.0 million. In August 2011, Portfolio Management signed an agreement to sell portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book
value of $16.9 million, which is expected to close in August 2011 and is subject to customary closing conditions. In connection with the sales,
the Company recorded write-downs of the value of the purchased accounts receivable of $18.6 million during the three months ended

March 31, 2011, and $11.2 million during the three months ended June 30, 2011.

Long-Term Debt:

The following presents the carrying values and the estimated fair values of the Company’ s long-term debt at June 30, 2011 (amounts in
thousands):

Carrying Value Fair Value
Senior term loan $ 479,454 $ 484,397
Senior revolving credit facility 46,000 46,010
Senior subordinated notes 200,000 169,000
Senior notes 165,000 146,025

The fair values of the Company’ s senior term loan and senior revolving credit facility were based on market interest rates for debt with similar
credit ratings. The fair values of the Company’ s senior notes and senior subordinated notes were based on their approximate trading prices at
June 30, 2011.

7. Purchased Accounts Receivable:

As of June 30, 2011, the carrying value of Portfolio Management’ s and ARM’ s purchased accounts receivable were $26.5 million and $3.0
million, respectively. The total outstanding balance due, representing the original undiscounted contractual amount less collections since
acquisition, was $34.3 billion at June 30, 2011 and $55.8 billion at December 31, 2010.

In April 2011, Portfolio Management sold portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book value of $5.0 million . In August 2011,
Portfolio Management signed an agreement to sell portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book value of $16.9 million, which is
expected to close in August 2011 and is subject to customary closing conditions. In connection with the sales, the Company recorded write-
downs of the value of the purchased accounts receivable of $18.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2011, and $11.2 million
during the three months ended June 30, 2011.
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7. Purchased Accounts Receivable (continued):
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The following summarizes the change in the carrying amount of the purchased accounts receivable (amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 49,908 $ 124873  $ 78,607 $ 138,429
Purchases 741 3,123 1,081 8,953
Collections (11,731) (27,760) (32,036) (63,131)
Revenue recognized 5,690 12,953 14,004 27,495
Write-downs (11,244) = (29,819) =
Proceeds from portfolio sales applied to

carrying value (4,300) - (4,300) -

Allowance recovery (impairment), net 319 (1,585) 1,788 (139)
Other 88 (174) 146 (177)
Balance at end of period $ 29471 $ 111,430 $ 29,471 $ 111,430

The following presents the change in the allowance for impairment of purchased accounts receivable (amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 157,250 $ 142,951 $ 158,694 $ 144,397
Additions 142 2,036 313 3,211
Recoveries (461) (451) (2,101) (3,072)
Portfolio sales (65,180) - (65,180) -
Other - (48) 25 (48)
Balance at end of period $ 91,751 $ 144,488  $ 91,751 $ 144,488

Accretable yield represents the excess of the cash flows expected to be collected during the life of the portfolio over the initial investment in
the portfolio. The following presents the change in accretable yield (amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 33,714 $ 103,534 $ 55,753 % 112,108
Additions 670 2,282 1,000 6,525
Write-downs (18,824) = (33,925) =
Revenue recognition (5,690) (12,953) (14,004) (27,495)
Reclassifications from (to) nonaccretable
difference 1,578 (3,594) 2,694 (1,891)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (134) 207 (204) 229
Balance at end of period $ 11,314 $ 89,476 $ 11,314 $ 89,476
9
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7. Purchased Accounts Receivable (continued):
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During the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company purchased accounts receivable with a cost of $741,000 and $3.1 million,
respectively, that had contractually required payments receivable at the date of acquisition of $31.9 million and $188.1 million, respectively,
and expected cash flows at the date of acquisition of $1.4 million and $5.4 million, respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2011
and 2010, the Company purchased accounts receivable with a cost of $1.1 million and $9.0 million, respectively, that had contractually
required payments receivable at the date of acquisition of $36.5 million and $575.9 million, respectively, and expected cash flows at the date
of acquisition of $2.1 million and $15.5 million, respectively.

8. Funds Held on Behalf of Clients:

In the course of the Company’ s regular business activities as a provider of accounts receivable management services, the Company receives
clients’ funds arising from the collection of accounts placed with the Company. These funds are placed in segregated cash accounts and are
generally remitted to clients within 30 days. Funds held on behalf of clients of $100.3 million and $70.5 million at June 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively, have been shown net of their offsetting liability for financial statement presentation.

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Goodwill is allocated and tested at the reporting unit level. Goodwill is tested for impairment each year during the fourth quarter, and between
annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its
carrying amount. No event occurred or circumstances changed since the last annual test that would more likely than not reduce the fair value
of a reporting unit below its carrying value. However, if the Company continues to experience adverse effects of the challenging economic
and business environment, including changes in financial projections, the Company may have to recognize an impairment of all or some
portion of its goodwill. The Company’ s reporting units are ARM, CRM and Portfolio Management.

The following summarizes the change in the Company’ s ARM and CRM reporting unit’ s goodwill; there was no goodwill in the Company’ s
Portfolio Management reporting unit at June 30, 2011 or December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands):

ARM CRM Total
Balance at January 1, 2011:
Goodwill $ 553,962 $ - S 553,962
Accumulated impairment (73,205) - (73,205)
480,757 - 480,757
Protocol acquisition - 6,216 6,216
Foreign currency translation and other 429 = 429
Balance at June 30, 2011:
Goodwill 554,391 6,216 560,607
Accumulated impairment (73,205) = (73,205)
$ 481,186 $ 6,216 $ 487,402

Trade name includes the NCO trade name, which is an indefinite-lived intangible asset and therefore is not subject to amortization. Similar to
goodwill, the NCO trade name is reviewed at least annually for impairment. At June 30, 2011, the balance of the NCO trade name was $82.6
million.

Trade name also includes certain trade names which are not considered to have indefinite lives and are therefore subject to amortization. At

June 30, 2011, the gross carrying amount of these trade names was $2.0 million, and the accumulated amortization was $1.3 million.

10
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued):

Other intangible assets subject to amortization consist of customer relationships and non-compete agreements. The following represents the
other intangible assets subject to amortization (amounts in thousands):

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Customer relationships $ 443,734 $ 276,444 $ 438332 $ 244,288
Non-compete agreements 3,372 2,631 3,372 2,345
Total $ 447,106 $ 279,075 § 441,704 § 246,633

The increase in customer relationships was due to the acquisition of Protocol in May 2011. The Company recorded amortization expense for
intangible assets of $16.3 million and $16.1 million during the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $32.5 million
and $32.2 million during the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The following represents the Company’ s expected amortization expense from these other intangible assets over the next five years (amounts
in thousands):

For the Years Ended Estimated
December 31, Amortization Expense
2011 $ 64,742
2012 60,874
2013 54,616
2014 16,780
2015 3,623

10. Long-Term Debt:
Long-term debt consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Senior term loan $ 479,454 $ 507,220
Senior revolving credit facility 46,000 10,000
Senior subordinated notes 200,000 200,000
Senior notes 165,000 165,000
Capital leases and other 5,815 7,133
Less current portion (11,883) (22,124)

$ 884,386 $ 867,229

Senior Credit Facility:

The Company has a senior credit facility (“Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of financial institutions that consists of a term loan and a $75.0
million revolving credit facility. The Company is required to make quarterly principal repayments of approximately $1.5 million on the term
loan until its maturity in May 2013, at which time its remaining balance outstanding is due. The Company is also required to make quarterly
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prepayments of 75 percent of the excess cash flow from the Company’ s purchased accounts receivable, and annual prepayments of 75 percent
or 50 percent of its excess annual cash flow, based on its leverage ratio, less the amounts paid during the year from the purchased accounts
receivable excess cash flow prepayments. The revolving credit facility requires no minimum principal payments until its maturity in
December 2012. The availability of the revolving credit facility is reduced by any unused letters of credit ($6.9 million at June 30, 2011). As
of June 30, 2011, the Company had $22.1 million of remaining availability under the revolving credit facility.
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10. Long-Term Debt (continued):
Senior Credit Facility (continued):

On March 25, 2011, the Company amended the Credit Facility to, among other things, adjust certain financial covenants, including increasing
maximum leverage ratios and decreasing minimum interest coverage ratios, extend the maturity of the revolving credit facility from
November 15, 2011 to December 31, 2012 and reduce the maximum borrowing capacity to $75.0 million through November 15, 2011 and
$67.5 million thereafter, and permit the Company to sell all or a portion of its portfolios of purchased accounts receivable.

All borrowings bear interest at an annual variable rate, based on either the prime rate (3.25 percent at June 30, 2011), the federal funds rate
(0.07 percent at June 30, 2011) or LIBOR (0.19 percent 30-day LIBOR at June 30, 2011) plus an applicable margin, which is based on the
type of rate and the Company’ s funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) ratio, as defined in
the loan agreement, subject to certain interest rate minimum requirements. The Company is charged a quarterly commitment fee on the unused
portion of the revolving credit facility at an annual rate ranging from 0.50 percent to 0.75 percent. The effective interest rate on the Credit
Facility was approximately 7.80 percent and 9.18 percent for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and 8.20 percent
and 9.20 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility are collateralized by substantially all of the Company’ s assets. The Credit Facility contains certain
financial and other covenants such as maintaining a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio, and includes restrictions
on, among other things, acquisitions, the incurrence of additional debt, investments, investments in purchased accounts receivable, disposition
of assets, liens and dividends and other distributions.

At June 30, 2011, the Company’ s leverage ratio was 5.69, compared to the covenant maximum of 6.75, and the interest coverage ratio was
1.98, compared to the covenant minimum of 1.65. The Company was in compliance with all required financial covenants and was not aware
of any events of default as of June 30, 2011.

Management believes that it will be able to maintain compliance with these covenants over the next twelve months. The Company’ s ability to
maintain compliance with the financial covenants will be highly dependent on the Company’ s results of operations and, to the extent
necessary, the Company’ s ability to implement remedial measures such as further reductions in operating costs. If the Company were to enter
into an agreement with its lenders for future covenant compliance relief or waivers, such covenant relief or waiver could result in additional
fees and higher interest expense.

If an event of default, such as failure to comply with covenants, and the failure to negotiate and obtain any required relief from the lenders,
were to occur under the Credit Facility, the Company would not be able to borrow under the revolving credit facility and the lenders would be
entitled to declare all amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility immediately due and payable and foreclose on the pledged assets. Under
these circumstances, the acceleration of the payment of the Company’ s debt would have a material adverse effect on its business.

Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes:

The Company has $165.0 million of floating rate senior notes due November 2013 (“‘Senior Notes™) and $200.0 million of 11.875 percent
senior subordinated notes due November 2014 (“Senior Subordinated Notes™) (collectively, “the Notes™). The Notes are guaranteed, jointly
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and severally, on a senior basis with respect to the Senior Notes and on a senior subordinated basis with respect to the Senior Subordinated
Notes, in each case by all of the Company’ s existing and future domestic restricted subsidiaries (other than certain subsidiaries and joint
ventures engaged in financing the purchase of delinquent accounts receivable portfolios and certain immaterial subsidiaries).

The Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations and are senior in right of payment to all existing and future senior subordinated
indebtedness, including the Senior Subordinated Notes, and all future subordinated indebtedness. The Senior Notes bear interest at an annual
rate equal to LIBOR plus 4.875 percent, reset quarterly. The effective interest rate of the Senior Notes was approximately 5.16 percent and
5.21 percent for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively and 5.17 percent and 5.18 percent for the six months ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company may redeem the Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at any time at varying redemption
prices depending on the redemption date, plus accrued and unpaid interest.
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10. Long-Term Debt (continued):
Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes (continued):

The Senior Subordinated Notes are unsecured senior subordinated obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to all existing and
future senior indebtedness, including the Senior Notes and borrowings under the Credit Facility. The Senior Subordinated Notes bear interest
at an annual rate equal to 11.875 percent. The Company may redeem the Senior Subordinated Notes, in whole or in part, at any time at varying
redemption prices depending on the redemption date, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

The indentures governing the Notes contain a number of covenants that limit the Company’ s and its restricted subsidiaries’ ability, among
other things, to: incur additional indebtedness and issue certain preferred stock, pay certain dividends, acquire shares of capital stock, make
payments on subordinated debt or make investments, place limitations on distributions from restricted subsidiaries, issue or sell capital stock
of restricted subsidiaries, guarantee indebtedness, sell or exchange assets, enter into transactions with affiliates, create certain liens, engage in
unrelated businesses, and consolidate, merge or transfer all or substantially all of the Company’ s assets and the assets of its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. As of June 30, 2011, the Company was in compliance with all required covenants. In addition, upon a change of control,
the Company is required to offer to repurchase all of the Notes then outstanding, at a purchase price equal to 101 percent of their principal
amount, plus any accrued interest to the date of repurchase.

11. Income Taxes:

The Company recorded income tax expense of $3.2 million and $1.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
and income tax expense of $5.1 million and $4.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company’ s
income tax expense differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to pre-tax income
(loss) primarily as a result of the recognition of a valuation allowance on certain domestic net deferred tax assets and income tax expense

attributable to state and foreign jurisdictions.

In general, the Company is required to use an estimated annual effective tax rate to measure the tax benefit or tax expense recognized in an
interim period. The income tax expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 was calculated based on the results of operations for
the period and does not reflect an estimated annual effective rate.

As a result of cumulative losses incurred by the Company since 2007, a valuation allowance was established due to the uncertainty that federal
and certain state deferred tax assets would be realized in future years. The Company increased its valuation allowance by $27.9 million to
$138.6 million as of June 30, 2011 from $110.7 million as of December 31, 2010, primarily as a result of federal and certain state deferred tax
assets exceeding deferred tax liabilities (after consideration for any net deferred tax liabilities associated with non-amortizable assets such as

goodwill and certain trade names).

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

The Company has also considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax-planning strategies in assessing the need for the
valuation allowance. On a quarterly basis, management assesses whether it remains more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not
be realized. In the event the Company determines at a future time that it could realize its deferred tax assets in excess of the net amount
recorded, the Company will reduce its deferred tax asset valuation allowance and decrease income tax expense in the period when the
Company makes such determination.

12. Stockholders’ Equity:

Capital Stock:
The Company is authorized to issue three classes of capital stock: Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, Class L Common Stock, par
value $0.01 per share (“Class L") and Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Class A”). Shares of Class L, Class A and three
series of Preferred Stock: Series A 14 percent PIK Preferred Stock (“Series A™), Series B-1 19 percent PIK Preferred Stock (“Series B-1"),

and Series B-2 19 percent Preferred Stock (“Series B-2"), are issued and outstanding.
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12. Stockholders’ Equity (continued):
Capital Stock (continued):
Series A is entitled to a quarterly “paid-in-kind” dividend at an annual rate of 14 percent and Series B-1 is entitled to a quarterly “paid-in-

kind” dividend at an annual rate of 19 percent. The following presents the Series A and Series B-1 shares issued for the “paid-in-kind”
dividends (shares in thousands):

For the Three Months For the Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Series A 122 106 237 207
Series B-1 13 11 25 21

On May 19, 2011, the Company issued 9,812 shares of Series B-2 and 132,823 shares of Class L as partial consideration for the acquisition of
Protocol.

Noncontrolling Interests:

The following table summarizes the activity in stockholders’ equity attributable to NCO Group, Inc. and noncontrolling interests (amounts in

thousands):
NCO Group, Inc. Total
Stockholders’ Noncontrolling Stockholders’
Equity Interests Equity
Balance at January 1, 2011 $ 80,406 $ 6,520 $ 86,926
Issuance of stock 3,111 - 3,111
Stock-based compensation 224 = 224
Distributions to noncontrolling interests, net - (2,083) (2,083)
Net loss (72,844) (2,761) (75,605)
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Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,538 - 2,538
Balance at June 30, 2011 $ 13,435 $ 1,676 $ 15,111

Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Comprehensive income (loss) was as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Net loss attributable to NCO Group, Inc. $ (31,653) $ (25,522) $ (72,844) $ (40,794)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 592 (2,486) 2,150 (1,799)
Net losses on cash flow hedges reclassified into
earnings, net of tax = 853 388 1,746
Comprehensive loss - NCO Group, Inc. (31,061) (27,155) (70,306) (40,847)
Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling
interests (651) 203 (2,761) 1,137
Total comprehensive loss $ (31,712) $ (26,952) $ (73,067) $ (39,710)
14
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13. Derivative Financial Instruments:

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to minimize the impact of currency fluctuations on transactions and cash flows. These
contracts may be designated as cash flow hedges. The Company had forward exchange contracts for the purchase of 944.9 million Philippine
pesos and 6.3 million Canadian dollars outstanding at June 30, 2011, which mature throughout the remainder of 2011 and into 2012.

The Company had interest rate swap agreements to minimize the impact of LIBOR fluctuations on interest payments on the Company’ s
floating rate debt, which matured during the first quarter of 2011. The Company was required to pay the counterparties quarterly interest
payments at a weighted average fixed rate, and received from the counterparties variable quarterly interest payments based on LIBOR. The net
interest paid or received was included in interest expense. On March 25, 2009, the Company amended its senior credit facility, which
amendment included a minimum LIBOR of 2.50 percent. This amendment caused the existing interest rate swaps to become ineffective and,
as of March 25, 2009, these interest rate swaps were not accounted for as cash flow hedges. Accordingly, the fair market value of the interest
rate swaps at March 25, 2009 was being amortized to interest expense, using the effective interest rate method, over the remaining lives of the
interest rate swap agreements, and future changes in the fair market value of these interest rate swaps after March 25, 2009 were recorded in

interest expense.
The Company has embedded derivatives relating to the contingent payment provision in its nonrecourse credit facility relating to purchased
accounts receivable, and relating to the sellers’ participation in collections that are in excess of minimum targets for certain portfolios of

purchased accounts receivable.

The following summarizes the fair value of the Company’ s derivatives, none of which were designated as hedges (amounts in thousands):

Balance Sheet Fair Value
Location June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
Asset derivatives
Forward exchange contracts Other current assets $ 116
Total asset derivatives $ 116
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Liability derivatives

Interest rate swaps Accrued expenses $ - 8 1,489
Forward exchange contracts Accrued expenses 349 =
Embedded derivatives Long-term debt and accrued expenses 1,502 2,486

Total liability derivatives $ 1,851 $ 3,975

The following summarizes the effect of derivatives on the Company, none of which were designated as hedges (amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended June 30,

2011 2010
Amount of Gain Amount of Gain
Location of Gain (Loss) (Loss) Recognized (Loss) Recognized
Recognized in Earnings in Earnings in Earnings
Forward exchange contracts Other income (expense) $ (220) $ 154
Interest rate swaps (after March 25, 2009) Interest expense - 238
Amortization of interest rate swaps Interest expense = (1,339)
Embedded derivatives Interest expense 620 261
Total $ 400 $ (686)
15
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13. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued):
For the Six Months Ended June 30,
2011 2010
Amount of Gain Amount of Gain
Location of Gain (Loss) (Loss) Recognized (Loss) Recognized
Recognized in Earnings in Earnings in Earnings
Derivatives not designated as hedges:
Forward exchange contracts Other income (expense) $ (220) $ 352
Interest rate swaps (after March 25, 2009) Interest expense (6) (1,158)
Amortization of interest rate swaps Interest expense (610) (2,741)
Embedded derivatives Interest expense 459 761
Total derivatives not designated as hedges $ 37D $ (2,786)
14. Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
The following are supplemental disclosures of cash flow information (amounts in thousands):
For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
2011 2010
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Fair value of assets acquired $ 18,106 $ -
Liabilities assumed from acquisitions 5,478 =
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Issuance of stock for the Protocol acquisition 3,111 -
15. Commitments and Contingencies:
Purchase Commitments:
The Company enters into noncancelable agreements with various telecommunications companies and other vendors that require minimum

purchase commitments. These agreements expire between 2011 and 2012. The following represents the future minimum payments, by year
and in the aggregate, under noncancelable purchase commitments (amounts in thousands):

2011 $ 9,725
2012 7,392
$ 17,117

The Company incurred $3.2 million and $3.3 million of expense from vendors associated with these purchase commitments for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $6.3 million and $6.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Litigation and Investigations:
The Company is party, from time to time, to various legal proceedings, regulatory investigations, client audits and tax examinations incidental
to its business. The Company continually monitors these legal proceedings, regulatory investigations, client audits and tax examinations to
determine the impact and any required accruals. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” in the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2010.
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15. Commitments and Contingencies (continued):

Litigation and Investigations (continued):
Attorneys General:
From time to time, the Company receives subpoenas or other similar information requests from various states’ Attorneys General, requesting
information relating to the Company’ s debt collection practices in such states. The Company responds to such inquiries or investigations and
provides certain information to the respective Attorneys General offices. The Company believes it is in compliance with the laws of the states
in which it does business relating to debt collection practices in all material respects. However, no assurance can be given that any such
inquiries or investigations will not result in a formal investigation or an enforcement action. Any such enforcement actions could result in
fines as well as the suspension or termination of the Company’ s ability to conduct business in such states.

Other:

The Company is involved in other legal proceedings, regulatory investigations, client audits and tax examinations from time to time in the
ordinary course of its business. Management believes that none of these other legal proceedings, regulatory investigations, client audits or tax
examinations will have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

16. Segment Reporting:
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As of June 30, 2011, the Company’ s business consisted of three operating segments: ARM, CRM and Portfolio Management. The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those described in note 2, “Accounting Policies.”

ARM provides accounts receivable management services to consumer and commercial accounts for all market sectors including financial
services, healthcare, retail and commercial, telecommunications, utilities, education, and government. ARM serves clients of all sizes in local,
regional and national markets in North America, Europe and Australia through offices in North America, Asia, Europe and Australia. In
addition to traditional accounts receivable collections, these services include developing the client relationship beyond bad debt recovery and
delinquency management, and delivering cost-effective accounts receivable solutions to all market sectors. ARM also provides accounts
receivable management services to Portfolio Management. ARM recorded revenue of $4.4 million and $10.9 million for intercompany
services to Portfolio Management for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $12.7 million and $24.6 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

CRM provides customer relationship management services to clients in North America through offices in North America and Asia.

Portfolio Management purchases and manages defaulted consumer accounts receivable from consumer creditors such as banks, finance
companies, retail merchants, utilities, healthcare companies and other consumer oriented companies.

The following presents total assets, net of any intercompany balances, for each segment (amounts in thousands):

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

ARM $ 979,988 $ 1,004,573

CRM 168,477 151,626

Portfolio Management 32,636 81,514

Total assets $ 1,181,101 $ 1,237,713
17
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16. Segment Reporting (continued):

The following tables present the revenue, payroll and related expenses, selling, general, and administrative expenses, reimbursable costs and
fees, restructuring charges, income (loss) from operations before depreciation and amortization and capital expenditures for each segment

(amounts in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2011

Portfolio
ARM CRM Management Eliminations Total

Revenues $ 308,722 $ 75,703 $ (6,185) $ 4,379) $ 373,861
Payroll and related expenses 113,795 56,488 567 = 170,850
Selling, general and admin. expenses 85,022 13,843 4,664 (4,246) 99,283
Reimbursable costs and fees 82,916 = = (133) 82,783
Restructuring charges 3,164 547 (635) - 3,076
Income (loss) from operations before depreciation

and amortization $ 23,825 §$ 4,825 $ (10,781) $ - 3 17,869

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2010
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Portfolio

ARM CRM Management Eliminations Total

Revenues $ 334585 § 66,523 $ 10,792 $ (10,856) $ 401,044
Payroll and related expenses 123,399 51,734 518 = 175,651
Selling, general and admin. expenses 98,377 14,137 11,297 (10,557) 113,254
Reimbursable costs and fees 82,728 = = (299) 82,429
Restructuring charges 3,972 639 338 - 4,949
Income (loss) from operations before depreciation

and amortization $ 26,109 $ 13 8 (1,361) § - $ 24,761

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2011

Portfolio
ARM CRM Management Eliminations Total

Revenues $ 632,850 $ 144,084 $ (15,668) $ (12,682) $ 748,584
Payroll and related expenses 231,742 107,093 1,152 = 339,987
Selling, general and admin. expenses 172,310 28,027 13,266 (12,419) 201,184
Reimbursable costs and fees 167,979 = = (263) 167,716
Restructuring charges 12,980 2,902 (630) - 15,252
Income (loss) from operations before depreciation

and amortization $ 47,839 § 6,062 $ (29,456) $ - $ 24,445
Capital expenditures $ 11,350 $ 1,713  $ - 3 - 3 13,063
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16. Segment Reporting (continued):
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
Portfolio
ARM CRM Management Eliminations Total

Revenues $ 680,066 $ 143,057 $ 26,066 $ (24,576) $ 824,613
Payroll and related expenses 252,069 108,140 1,710 = 361,919
Selling, general and admin. expenses 194,960 28,289 25,489 (23,952) 224,786
Reimbursable costs and fees 167,399 = = (624) 166,775
Restructuring charges 4251 651 1,481 - 6,383
Income (loss) from operations before depreciation

and amortization $ 61,387 $ 5977 $ (2,614) $ - $ 64,750
Capital expenditures $ 8,863 $ 3384 § - 3 - 5 12,247

17. Related Party Transactions:
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One Equity Partners (“OEP”) is the majority stockholder of the Company. The Company pays OEP a management fee of $3.0 million per
year, plus reimbursement of expenses, for management, advice and related services. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, the Company incurred $750,000 and $1.5 million, respectively, relating to such management fees, which were included in selling,
general and administrative expenses.

OEP is managed by OEP Holding Corporation, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of JP Morgan Chase & Co. (“JPM”), and JPM is a client
of the Company. The Company received fees for providing services to JPM of $1.9 million and $2.8 million for the three months ended

June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $4.1 million and $5.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Additionally, an affiliate of Citigroup is an investor in the Company, and Citigroup is a client of the Company. The Company received fees for
providing services to Citigroup of $9.9 million and $12.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $18.9
million and $25.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the
Company had accounts receivable of $2.7 million and $1.5 million, respectively, due from Citigroup.

The Company has certain corporate banking relationships with affiliates of JPM and is charged market rates for these services.
18. Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting Guidance:

In June 2011, the FASB issued guidance affecting the presentation of comprehensive income. The new guidance eliminates the option of
presenting the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity. Under the new
guidance, the Company will have the option to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components
of other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive
statements. In both choices, an entity is required to present each component of net income along with total net income, each component of
other comprehensive income along with a total for other comprehensive income, and a total amount for comprehensive income. The new
guidance is effective for the Company on January 1, 2012. The Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material
impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued amended guidance for fair value measurement and disclosure in order to achieve commonality between U.S.
GAAP and IFRS. As a result, the amendments change the wording used to describe many of the principles and requirements in U.S. GAAP
for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements. For many of the requirements, the FASB does not
intend for the amendments in this guidance to result in a change in the application of the current requirements. The new guidance is effective
for the Company on January 1, 2012. The Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on its financial
condition or results of operations.
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18. Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting Guidance (continued):

In December 2010, the FASB issued amended guidance for business combinations, specifically related to disclosures of supplementary pro
forma information. The amended guidance specifies that if comparative financial statements are presented, then revenue and earnings of the
combined entity should be disclosed as though the business combination, which occurred during the current year, had occurred as of the
beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only. The amended guidance also expands the supplemental pro forma information
disclosures to include a description of the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly attributable to the
business combination. The Company adopted this guidance on January 1, 2011, and it did not have an impact on the Company since it is for
disclosure purposes only.

19. Subsequent Events:
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On July 7, 2011, APAC Customer Services, Inc. (“APAC”), a leader in global outsourced services and solutions, and OEP announced that
they had entered into a definitive merger agreement under which an affiliate of OEP will acquire 100% of APAC, through an all-cash
transaction with an aggregate equity value of approximately $470 million. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2011,
subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including approval of APAC’ s shareholders. OEP has announced that it will seek
to combine APAC with the Company to build market leadership in business process outsourcing and customer care solutions.

20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information:

The Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by certain domestic 100 percent owned subsidiaries of the Company
(collectively, the “Guarantors™). Non-guarantors consist of all non-domestic subsidiaries, certain subsidiaries engaged in financing the
purchase of delinquent accounts receivable portfolios, portfolio joint ventures (which are engaged in portfolio financing transactions) and
certain immaterial subsidiaries (collectively, the “Non-Guarantors™). The following tables present the consolidating financial information for
the Company (Parent), the Guarantors and the Non-Guarantors, together with eliminations, as of and for the periods indicated.
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):
NCO GROUP, INC.
Consolidating Balance Sheet
June 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands)

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 3 8,548 § 9473 § - 3 18,021
Accounts receivable, trade, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts - 162,927 24,146 - 187,073
Purchased accounts receivable, current portion = 8,434 13,423 = 21,857
Deferred income taxes (10,467) 17,094 2,510 - 9,137
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,328 45,151 21,357 - 67,836
Total current assets (9,139) 242,154 70,909 - 303,924
Property and equipment, net - 70,656 25,360 - 96,016
Other assets:
Goodwill = 452,699 34,703 = 487,402
Trade name, net of accumulated amortization - 81,781 1,525 - 83,306
Customer relationships and other intangible
assets, net of accumulated amortization = 161,202 6,829 = 168,031
Purchased accounts receivable, net of current
portion - 3,980 3,634 - 7,614
Investment in subsidiaries 736,841 (26,927) = (709,914) =
Deferred income taxes 330 1,167 2,508 - 4,005
Other assets 10,350 18,334 2,119 = 30,803
Total other assets 747,521 692,236 51,318 (709,914) 781,161
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Total assets $ 738,382 § 1,005,046 § 147,587 $ 1,181,101
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Long-term debt, current portion $ 10414 S 237 $ 1,232 $ 11,883
Intercompany payable (receivable) 267,052 (367,203) 100,151 =
Income taxes payable - - 3,093 3,093
Accounts payable 750 19,105 (133) 19,722
Accrued expenses 4,349 66,944 15,562 86,855
Accrued compensation and related expenses = 29,011 15,521 44,532
Deferred revenue, current portion - 29,173 588 29,761
Deferred income taxes = 5 1,181 1,186
Total current liabilities 282,565 (222,728) 137,195 197,032
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion 459,635 419,586 5,165 884,386
Deferred income taxes (27,548) 76,986 (486) 48,952
Deferred revenue, net of current portion = 618 = 618
Other long-term liabilities 10,295 11,889 12,818 35,002
Stockholders’ equity:
Total NCO Group, Inc. stockholders’ equity 13,435 718,695 (8,781) 13,435
Noncontrolling interests - - 1,676 1,676
Total stockholders’ equity 13,435 718,695 (7,105) 15,111
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity § 738382 § 1,005,046 $ 147,587 $ 1,181,101
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):
NCO GROUP, INC.
Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)
Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Consolidated
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 3 19,409 $ 13,668 $ 33,077
Accounts receivable, trade, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts - 153,526 17,824 171,350
Purchased accounts receivable, current portion = 16,576 13,107 29,683
Deferred income taxes (10,468) 17,094 2,458 9,084
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,587 21,800 28,151 51,538
Total current assets (8,881) 228,405 75,208 294,732
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Property and equipment, net - 71,472 27,617 - 99,089
Other assets:
Goodwill = 438,837 41,920 = 480,757
Trade name, net of accumulated amortization - 80,661 2,847 - 83,508
Customer relationships and other intangible
assets, net of accumulated amortization = 182,734 12,337 = 195,071
Purchased accounts receivable, net of current
portion - 29,726 19,198 - 48,924
Investment in subsidiaries 754,036 (16,347) = (737,689) =
Deferred income taxes 330 1,167 2,752 - 4,249
Other assets 11,037 18,713 1,633 = 31,383
Total other assets 765,403 735,491 80,687 (737,689) 843,892
Total assets § 756,522 § 1,035,368 § 183,512 (737,689) $ 1,237,713
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Long-term debt, current portion $ 20,014 $ 245 $ 1,865 - $ 22,124
Intercompany payable (receivable) 189,799 (289,904) 100,105 = =
Income taxes payable - - 4,662 - 4,662
Accounts payable 750 16,305 2,732 = 19,787
Accrued expenses 6,749 54,046 30,485 - 91,280
Accrued compensation and related expenses = 23,517 13,061 = 36,578
Deferred revenue, current portion - 30,698 601 - 31,299
Deferred income taxes = 5 1,153 1,158
Total current liabilities 217,312 (165,088) 154,664 - 206,888
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion 487,801 374,263 5,165 = 867,229
Deferred income taxes (38,495) 79,609 4,649 - 45,763
Deferred revenue, net of current portion = 696 = = 696
Other long-term liabilities 9,498 10,286 10,427 - 30,211
Stockholders’ equity:
Total NCO Group, Inc. stockholders’ equity 80,406 735,602 2,087 (737,689) 80,406
Noncontrolling interests - - 6,520 - 6,520
Total stockholders’ equity 80,406 735,602 8,607 (737,689) 86,926
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity § 756,522 § 1,035,368 § 183,512 (737,689) ' $ 1,237,713
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):
NCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations
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For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2011
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Services $ - 3 284961 $ 68,453 $ (57,208) 296,206
Portfolio = (8,016) 2,888 = (5,128)
Reimbursable costs and fees - 82,586 197 - 82,783
Total revenues = 359,531 71,538 (57,208) 373,861
Operating costs and expenses:
Payroll and related expenses 2 173,885 46,756 (49,793) 170,850
Selling, general and administrative expenses 967 83,580 22,151 (7,415) 99,283
Reimbursable costs and fees - 82,586 197 - 82,783
Depreciation and amortization expense = 21,159 4,669 = 25,828
Restructuring charges - 2,744 332 - 3,076
Total operating costs and expenses 969 363,954 74,105 (57,208) 381,820
Loss from operations (969) (4,423) (2,567) - (7,959)
Other income (expense):
Interest and investment income = 113 (11) = 102
Interest expense (11,621) (9,386) (158) - (21,165)
Interest (expense) income to affiliate (8,156) 9,737 (1,581) = =
Subsidiary (loss) income (7,143) (3,733) - 10,876 -
Other expense, net = (34) (13) = 47)
(26,920) (3,303) (1,763) 10,876 (21,110)
(Loss) income before income taxes (27,889) (7,726) (4,330) 10,876 (29,069)
Income tax expense (benefit) 3,764 (1,191) 662 = 3,235
Net (loss) income (31,653) (6,535) (4,992) 10,876 (32,304)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests = = (651) = (651)
Net (loss) income attributable to NCO
Group, Inc. $ (31,653) $ (6,535) $ (4,341) $ 10,876 (31,653)
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):
NCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2010
(Unaudited)
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(Amounts in thousands)

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Services $ - $ 304,914 63,414 $ (61,340) 306,988
Portfolio = 3,862 7,765 = 11,627
Reimbursable costs and fees - 82,369 60 - 82,429
Total revenues = 391,145 71,239 (61,340) 401,044
Operating costs and expenses:
Payroll and related expenses 4 180,170 43,338 (47,861) 175,651
Selling, general and administrative
expenses 1,044 96,918 28,771 (13,479) 113,254
Reimbursable costs and fees - 82,369 60 - 82,429
Depreciation and amortization expense = 21,730 5,627 = 27,357
Restructuring charges - 5,330 (381) - 4,949
Total operating costs and expenses 1,048 386,517 77,415 (61,340) 403,640
(Loss) income from operations (1,048) 4,628 (6,176) - (2,596)
Other income (expense):
Interest and investment income 244 (492) 433 = 185
Interest expense (13,338) (8,135) (683) - (22,156)
Interest (expense) income to affiliate (4,639) 6,418 (1,779) = =
Subsidiary (loss) income (4,150) (5,953) - 10,103 -
Other (expense) income, net (90) 1,047 156 = 1,113
(21,973) (7,115) (1,873) 10,103 (20,858)
(Loss) income before income taxes (23,021) (2,487) (8,049) 10,103 (23,454)
Income tax expense (benefit) 2,501 972 (1,608) = 1,865
Net (loss) income (25,522) (3,459) (6,441) 10,103 (25,319)
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests - - 203 = 203
Net (loss) income attributable to NCO
Group, Inc. $ (25,522) $ (3,459) (6,644) $ 10,103 (25,522)
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):
NCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)
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Revenues:
Services
Portfolio
Reimbursable costs and fees

Total revenues

Operating costs and expenses:
Payroll and related expenses
Selling, general and administrative

expenses

Reimbursable costs and fees

Depreciation and amortization expense

Restructuring charges
Total operating costs and expenses

Loss from operations

Other income (expense):
Interest and investment income
Interest expense
Interest (expense) income to affiliate
Subsidiary (loss) income
Other expense, net

(Loss) income before income taxes

Income tax expense (benefit)

Net (loss) income

Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling

interests

Net (loss) income attributable to NCO
Group, Inc.

Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

$ - $ 577,506 $ 133,975 $ (116,831) 594,650
= (18,454) 4,672 = (13,782)

- 167,473 243 - 167,716

— 726,525 138,890 (116,831) 748,584

4 347,828 90,265 (98,110) 339,987

1,973 170,646 47,286 (18,721) 201,184

- 167,473 243 - 167,716

= 42,202 9,675 = 51,877

- 13,317 1,935 - 15,252

1,977 741,466 149,404 (116,831) 776,016
(1,977) (14,941) (10,514) - (27,432)

6 261 (66) = 201
(24,467) (17,687) (839) - (42,993)
(15,061) 18,228 (3,167) = =
(19,931) (7,838) - 27,769 -
- (228) (13) - (241)
(59,453) (7,264) (4,085) 27,769 (43,033)
(61,430) (22,205) (14,599) 27,769 (70,465)
11,414 (2,456) (3,818) — 5,140
(72,844) (19,749) (10,781) 27,769 (75,605)
= = (2,761) = (2,761)
$ (72,844 S (19749) $ (8,020) $ 27,769 (72,844)
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):

NCO GROUP, INC.
Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2010

(Unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands)
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Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Services $ - $ 614258 § 140979 §  (125,323) $ 629,914
Portfolio = 11,913 16,011 = 27,924
Reimbursable costs and fees - 166,655 120 - 166,775
Total revenues = 792,826 157,110 (125,323) 824,613
Operating costs and expenses:
Payroll and related expenses 8 370,335 86,712 (95,136) 361,919
Selling, general and administrative
expenses 2,128 192,941 59,904 (30,187) 224,786
Reimbursable costs and fees - 166,655 120 - 166,775
Depreciation and amortization expense = 43,662 11,425 = 55,087
Restructuring charges - 5,507 876 - 6,383
Total operating costs and expenses 2,136 779,100 159,037 (125,323) 814,950
(Loss) income from operations (2,136) 13,726 (1,927) - 9,663
Other income (expense):
Interest and investment income 244 (1,356) 1,385 = 273
Interest expense (28,620) (15,938) (1,199) - (45,757)
Interest (expense) income to affiliate (7,622) 11,194 (3,572) = =
Subsidiary (loss) income 915) (5,119) - 6,034 -
Other income, net 38 875 156 = 1,069
(36,875) (10,344) (3,230) 6,034 (44,415)
(Loss) income before income taxes (39,011) 3,382 (5,157) 6,034 (34,752)
Income tax expense 1,783 2,935 187 = 4,905
Net (loss) income (40,794) 447 (5,344) 6,034 (39,657)
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests - - 1,137 = 1,137
Net (loss) income attributable to NCO
Group, Inc. $ (40,794) $ 447 $ (6,481) $ 6,034 $ (40,794)
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):
NCO GROUP, INC
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2011
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)
Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Consolidated
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Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (29,959) $ 31,581 § (7,060) § (5,438)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of accounts receivable - - (1,081) (1,081)
Collections applied to principal of purchased accounts
receivable = 10,862 7,170 18,032
Proceeds from sales of purchased accounts receivable - - 4,300 4,300
Purchases of property and equipment = (11,347) (1,716) (13,063)
Net cash paid related to acquisitions - (20,823) - (20,823)
Other = 733 = 733
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities - (20,575) 8,673 (11,902)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of notes payable = (71) (798) (869)
Net borrowings under revolving credit facility 36,000 - - 36,000
Repayment of borrowings under senior term loan (27,766) = = (27,766)
Borrowings under (repayments of) intercompany notes
payable 24,509 (21,796) (2,713) -
Payment of fees related to debt (2,784) = = (2,784)
Return of investment in subsidiary to noncontrolling
interests - - (2,083) (2,083)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 29,959 (21,867) (5,594) 2,498
Effect of exchange rate on cash = = (214) (214)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents = (10,861) (4,195) (15,056)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period = 19,409 13,668 33,077
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ - 3 8,548 § 9,473 § 18,021
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information (continued):
NCO GROUP, INC
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)
Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Consolidated
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (29,980) $ 63,777 $ 2,589 § 36,386
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of accounts receivable - (8,202) (751) (8,953)
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Collections applied to principal of purchased accounts

receivable = 20,665 14,971 35,636
Purchases of property and equipment - (11,573) (674) (12,247)
Other = 1,331 = 1,331

Net cash provided by investing activities - 2,221 13,546 15,767

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of notes payable = (164) (8,317) (8,481)
Net repayments of revolving credit facility (17,000) - - (17,000)
Repayment of borrowings under senior term loan (34,027) = = (34,027)
Borrowings under (repayments of) intercompany notes

payable 83,761 (74,998) (8,763) -
Payment of fees related to debt (2,754) 4 = (2,758)
Return of investment in subsidiary to noncontrolling

interests - - (2,736) (2,736)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 29,980 (75,166) (19,816) (65,002)

Effect of exchange rate on cash = = (629) (629)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents = (9,168) (4,310) (13,478)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period = 18,984 20,237 39,221
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ - 9 9,816 § 15,927 $ 25,743
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Item 2. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, other than historical facts, are forward-looking statements (as such

term is defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the regulations thereunder), which are intended to be covered by the

safe harbors created thereby. Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements as to:

e the Company’ s expected future results of operations;

e  economic conditions;

e the Company’ s business and growth strategy;

o fluctuations in quarterly operating results;

e the possible combination with APAC,;

o the integration of acquisitions;

o the final outcome of the Company’ s litigation with its former landlord;

e statements as to liquidity and compliance with debt covenants;

o the effects of terrorist attacks, war and the economy on the Company’ s business;
e cexpected increases in operating efficiencies;

e anticipated trends in the business process outsourcing industry;

e cstimates of future cash flows and allowances for impairments of purchased accounts receivable;
e cstimates of intangible asset impairments and amortization expense of customer relationships and other intangible assets;
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The words ‘“anticipate,” “believe,
“continue,

the effects of legal proceedings, regulatory investigations and tax examinations;
the effects of changes in accounting guidance; and
statements as to trends or the Company’ s or management’ s beliefs, expectations and opinions.

9 9 9 6

expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “guidance,

9

estimate, potential,”

9”@

project,” “forecast,” “confident,” and similar expressions are typically used to identify forward-looking statements. These

statements are based on assumptions and assessments made by the Company’ s management in light of their experience and their perception of
historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors they believe to be appropriate. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of the Company’ s future performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties and may be affected by various
factors that may cause actual results, developments and business decisions to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements.
Some of the factors that may cause actual results, developments and business decisions to differ materially from those contemplated by such
forward-looking statements include:

risks related to the instability in the financial markets;

risks related to adverse capital and credit market conditions;

the ability of governmental and regulatory bodies to stabilize the financial markets;

risks related to the domestic and international economies;

risks related to derivative transactions;

risks related to the Company’ s ability to grow internally;

risks related to the Company’ s ability to compete;

risks related to the Company’ s substantial indebtedness, its ability to service such debt and its ability to comply with debt covenants;
risks related to the Company’ s ability to meet liquidity needs;

the risk that the Company will not be able to implement its growth strategy as and when planned;

risks associated with growth and acquisitions;

risks related to the possible combination with APAC;

the risk that the Company will not be able to realize operating efficiencies in the integration of its acquisitions;
fluctuations in quarterly operating results;

risks related to the timing of contracts;

risks related to purchased accounts receivable;

risks related to possible impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets;

the Company’ s dependence on senior management;

risks related to security and privacy breaches;

risks related to union organizing efforts at the Company’ s facilities;
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risks associated with technology;

risks related to the final outcome of the Company’ s litigation with its former landlord;

risks related to litigation, regulatory investigations and tax examinations;

risks related to past or possible future terrorist attacks;

risks related to natural disasters or the threat or outbreak of war or hostilities;

the risk that the Company will not be able to improve margins;

risks related to the Company’ s international operations;

risks related to the availability of qualified employees, particularly in new or more cost-effective locations;
risks related to currency fluctuations;

risks related to reliance on independent telecommunications service providers;

risks related to concentration of the Company’ s clients in the financial services, telecommunications and healthcare sectors;
risks related to the possible loss of key clients or loss of significant volumes from key clients; and

risks related to changes in government regulations.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

The Company can give no assurance that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will occur or, if any of them
does, what impact they will have on our results of operations and financial condition. The Company disclaims any intent or obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, regardless of whether new information becomes available, future developments
occur or otherwise. For additional information concerning the risks that affect us, see our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and “Part II. Other Information - Item 1A. Risk Factors” of this Report on Form 10-Q.

Overview

We are a holding company and conduct substantially all of our business operations through our subsidiaries. We are an international
provider of business process outsourcing services, referred to as BPO, primarily focused on accounts receivable management, referred to as
ARM, and customer relationship management, referred to as CRM, serving a wide range of clients in North America and abroad through our
global network of over 100 offices.

Historically, we have participated in the purchased accounts receivable business on an opportunistic basis. Beginning in 2009, we
significantly reduced our purchases of accounts receivable. This decision resulted from declines in liquidation rates, competition for purchased
accounts receivable and the continued uncertainty of collectibility, as well as potential regulatory changes affecting the purchased accounts
receivable business.

We operate our business in three segments: ARM, CRM and Portfolio Management.

In April 2011, Portfolio Management sold portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book value of $5.0 million. In August 2011,
Portfolio Management signed an agreement to sell portfolios of purchased accounts receivable with a book value of $16.9 million, which is
expected to close in August 2011 and is subject to customary closing conditions. In connection with the sales, we recorded write-downs of the
value of the purchased accounts receivable of $18.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2011, and $11.2 million during the three
months ended June 30, 2011.

Our operating costs consist principally of payroll and related costs; selling, general and administrative costs; and depreciation and
amortization. Payroll and related expenses consist of wages and salaries, commissions, bonuses, and benefits for all of our employees,
including management and administrative personnel. Selling, general and administrative expenses include telephone, postage and mailing
costs, outside collection attorneys and other third-party collection services providers, and other collection costs, as well as expenses that
directly support operations, including facility costs, equipment maintenance, sales and marketing, data processing, professional fees, and other
management costs. Our payroll and related expenses may increase or decrease due to changes in the value of the U.S. dollar against the
Canadian dollar and the Philippine peso.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, we identified $58.3 million of reimbursable costs and fees received from clients associated with certain
contractual arrangements acquired in connection with the acquisition of TSYS Total Debt Management that were incorrectly recorded on a net
basis, as an offset to selling, general and administrative expenses. Revenue should have included these reimbursable costs and fees, with an
equal and offsetting amount charged to operating expenses, due to the fact that we acted as principal and assumed overall risk in the
transactions under these contractual arrangements. The adjustment was made in the fourth quarter of 2010 and reflected in the statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2010. The adjustment was not material to the previously issued financial statements. Revenue and
operating expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 have
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been revised to reflect the reimbursable costs and fees in both revenue and operating expenses in the statement of operations.

The challenging economic environment in the U.S. has impacted our business over the course of 2009 and 2010, continuing into 2011.
Factors such as reduced availability of credit for consumers, a depressed real estate market, high unemployment and other factors have had a
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negative impact on the ability and willingness of consumers to pay their debts and a negative impact on our clients’ businesses, which has
adversely affected our results of operations, collections and revenue.

Further changes to the economic conditions in the U.S., either positive or negative, could have a significant impact on our business,
including, but not limited to:

e further impairment charges to our goodwill, trade name and purchased accounts receivable;

e fluctuations in the volume of placements of accounts and the collectability of those accounts for our ARM contingency fee based
services;

e  volume fluctuations in our ARM fixed fee based services;

e  volume fluctuations in our CRM services; and,

e variability in the collectability of existing portfolios.

On May 19, 2011, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Protocol Direct Marketing, Inc. and certain related entities, referred to as
Protocol, a provider of BPO solutions specializing in contact center services, for approximately $20.8 million in cash, subject to certain post-
closing adjustments, and the issuance of 9,812 shares of Series B-2 19 percent Preferred Stock and 132,823 shares of Class L Common Stock
valued at $3.1 million. The Protocol acquisition was included in the CRM segment.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2010

Revenue. (dollars in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended June 30,

% of % of
2011 Revenue 2010 Revenue $ Change % Change
ARM $ 308,722 82.6% $ 334,585 83.4% $ (25,863) (7.1%
CRM 75,703 20.2% 66,523 16.6% 9,180 13.8%
Portfolio Management (6,185) (1.6)% 10,792 2.7% (16,977) (157.3)%
Eliminations (4,379) 1.2)% (10,856) 2. 1% 6,477 (59.1%
Total $ 373,861 100.0% $ 401,044 100.0% $ (27,183) (6.8)%

ARM’ s revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, included $4.4 million and $10.9 million, respectively, of

intercompany revenue from Portfolio Management which was eliminated upon consolidation.

The decrease in ARM’ s revenue was primarily attributable to lower volumes in the first-party and third-party collections business during
2011, attributable to the impact of the economy on our clients’ business, and a $6.5 million decrease in fees from collection services
performed for Portfolio Management. These decreases were partially offset by a slight improvement in collections. ARM’ s revenue for the
three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 included $82.9 million and $82.7 million, respectively, of reimbursable costs and fees (discussed
in more detail below).

The increase in CRM’ s revenue was primarily due to the acquisition of Protocol in May 2011, which contributed $7.3 million of revenue,
as well as increased client volumes related to the implementation of new business during 2011 and to moving certain business to offshore
locations.

Portfolio Management’ s revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2011, included an $11.2 million write-down of certain portfolios of
purchased accounts receivable, which we anticipate selling in August 2011. Revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2011 also included a
$245,000 net recovery of previously recorded impairment charges, which reduced the valuation allowance against the carrying value of the
portfolios, compared to a net impairment of $1.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010. Portfolio Management’ s collections
decreased $16.2 million, or 61.8 percent, to $10.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011, from $26.2 million for the three months
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ended June 30, 2010. Excluding the effect of the write-down and the net recoveries, Portfolio Management’ s revenue represented 47.0 percent
of collections for the three months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to 46.4 percent of collections for the three months ended June 30, 2010.
The decrease in revenue and collections was primarily a result of the decision to minimize further investments in purchased accounts
receivable during 2010 and 2011.

Payroll and related expenses. (dollars in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended June 30,

% of % of
2011 Revenue 2010 Revenue $ Change % Change
ARM $ 113,795 36.9% $ 123,399 36.9% $ (9,604) (7.8)%
CRM 56,488 74.6% 51,734 77.8% 4,754 9.2%
Portfolio Management 567 (9.2)% 518 4.8% 49 9.5%
Eliminations - - - - - -
Total $ 170,850 457% § 175,651 43.8% $ (4,801) 2.7%

ARM'’ s payroll and related expenses as a percentage of revenue remained flat, despite the decrease in revenue. This was primarily due to
cost saving initiatives, including off-shoring of back-office functions and ongoing restructuring.

The decrease in CRM’ s payroll and related expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily a result of cost savings initiatives and
leveraging its infrastructure over the higher revenue base, attributable to moving new business to offshore locations with a lower cost
structure.

Portfolio Management outsources all of its collection services to ARM and, therefore, has a relatively small fixed payroll cost structure.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. (dollars in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended June 30,

% of % of
2011 Revenue 2010 Revenue $ Change % Change
ARM $ 85,022 27.5% $ 98,377 29.4% § (13,355) (13.6)%
CRM 13,843 18.3% 14,137 21.3% (294) 2.1)%
Portfolio Management 4,664 (75.4)% 11,297 104.7% (6,633) (58.7)%
Eliminations (4,246) 97.0% (10,557) 97.2% 6,311 (59.8)%
Total $ 99,283 26.6% $ 113,254 282% $ (13,971) (12.3)%

The decrease in ARM’ s selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily due to cost saving

initiatives, including ongoing restructuring of facilities.

The decrease in CRM’ s selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily attributable to cost savings

initiatives as well as leveraging its infrastructure over the higher revenue base.

The decrease in Portfolio Management’ s selling, general and administrative expenses resulted from a $6.5 million decrease in fees for
collection services provided by ARM, which was due to the reduction in purchases of accounts receivable, since these servicing fees are based
on collections. Included in Portfolio Management’ s selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, was $4.4 million and $10.9 million, respectively, of intercompany expense from ARM, for services provided to Portfolio Management,

which was eliminated in consolidation.
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Reimbursable costs and fees. Reimbursable costs and fees consist of court costs, legal fees and repossession fees, representing out-of-
pocket expenses that are reimbursed by our clients. Reimbursable costs and fees of $82.8 million and $82.4 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, are recorded as both revenue and operating expenses on the statement of operations.
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Restructuring charges. During the three months ended June 30, 2011, we incurred restructuring charges of $3.1 million, related to
streamlining the cost structure of the Company’ s operations. The charges consisted primarily of costs associated with the closing of redundant
facilities, severance and professional fees. This compares to $4.9 million of restructuring charges for the three months ended June 30, 2010.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased to $25.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011,
from $27.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2010. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower depreciation resulting from
more assets becoming fully depreciated.

Other income (expense). Interest expense decreased to $21.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011, from $22.2 million for
the three months ended June 30, 2010. Interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 included $620,000 of net gains and
$840,000 of net losses, respectively, from interest rate swap agreements and embedded derivatives. Other expense, net for the three months
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 included approximately $220,000 of net losses and $154,000 of net gains, respectively, resulting from foreign
exchange contracts.

Income tax expense. For the three months ended June 30, 2011, we recorded income tax expense of $3.2 million on a pre-tax loss of
$29.1 million, or an effective income tax rate of (11.1) percent. For the three months ended June 30, 2010, we recorded income tax expense of
$1.9 million on a pre-tax loss of $23.5 million, or an effective tax rate of (8.0) percent. The Company’ s income tax expense differs from the
amount of income tax determined by applying the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to pre-tax income (loss) primarily as a result of the
recognition of a valuation allowance on certain domestic net deferred tax assets and income tax expense attributable to state and foreign
jurisdictions.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
Revenue. (dollars in thousands):

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

% of % of
2011 Revenue 2010 Revenue $ Change % Change
ARM $ 632,850 84.5% $ 680,066 82.5% $ (47,216) (6.9)%
CRM 144,084 19.3% 143,057 17.3% 1,027 0.7%
Portfolio Management (15,668) 2.1)% 26,066 3.2% (41,734) (160.1)%
Eliminations (12,682) (1.7)% (24,576) (3.0)% 11,894 (48.4)%
Total $§ 748,584 100.0% § 824,613 100.0% $  (76,029) (9.2)%

ARM’ s revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, included $12.7 million and $24.6 million, respectively, of
intercompany revenue from Portfolio Management which was eliminated upon consolidation.

The decrease in ARM’ s revenue was primarily attributable to lower volumes in the first-party and third-party collections business during
2011, attributable to the impact of the economy on our clients’ business, and an $11.9 million decrease in fees from collection services
performed for Portfolio Management. These decreases were partially offset by a slight improvement in collections. ARM’ s revenue for the six
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months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 included $168.0 million and $166.8 million, respectively, of reimbursable costs and fees (discussed in
more detail below).

The increase in CRM’ s revenue was primarily due to the acquisition of Protocol in May 2011, which contributed $7.3 million of revenue,
as well as increased client volume related to the implementation of new contracts during 2011, partially offset by lower volumes from certain

existing clients attributable to the impact of the economy on the clients’ business.

Portfolio Management’ s revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2011, included a $29.8 million write-down of certain portfolios of
purchased accounts receivable, which were either sold in April 2011 or are expected to be sold in August 2011. Revenue for the
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six months ended June 30, 2011, also included a $1.7 million net recovery of previously recorded impairment charges, compared to an
impairment charge of $303,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2010. Portfolio Management’ s collections decreased $31.1 million, or 51.9
percent, to $28.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, from $59.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. Excluding the
effect of the write-down and the recoveries of impairment charges, Portfolio Management’ s revenue represented 42.4 percent of collections
for the six months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to 43.1 percent of collections for the six months ended June 30, 2010. The decrease in
revenue and collections was primarily a result of the decision to minimize further investments in purchased accounts receivable during 2010
and 2011.

Payroll and related expenses. (dollars in thousands):

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

% of % of
2011 Revenue 2010 Revenue $ Change % Change
ARM § 231,742 36.6% § 252,069 37.1% $  (20,327) (8.1)%
CRM 107,093 74.3% 108,140 75.6% (1,047) (1.0)%
Portfolio Management 1,152 (7.4)% 1,710 6.6% (558) (32.6)%
Eliminations - - - - - -
Total $ 339,987 454% $ 361,919 439% $ (21,932) (6.1)%

The decrease in ARM’ s payroll and related expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily due to cost saving initiatives, including
off-shoring of back-office functions and ongoing restructuring.

The decrease in CRM’ s payroll and related expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily a result of cost savings initiatives and
leveraging its infrastructure over the higher revenue base, attributable to moving new business to offshore locations with a lower cost
structure.

Portfolio Management outsources all of its collection services to ARM and, therefore, has a relatively small fixed payroll cost structure.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. (dollars in thousands):

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

% of % of
2011 Revenue 2010 Revenue $ Change % Change
ARM § 172,310 272% $ 194,960 28.7% $ (22,650) (11.6)%
CRM 28,027 19.5% 28,289 19.8% (262) (0.9)%
Portfolio Management 13,266 (84.7)% 25,489 97.8% (12,223) (48.0)%
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Eliminations (12,419) 97.9% (23,952) 97.5% 11,533 (48.2)%
Total $ 201,184 26.9% § 224,786 273% $§  (23,602) (10.5)%

The decrease in ARM’ s selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily due to cost saving
initiatives, including ongoing restructuring of facilities.

The slight decrease in CRM'’ s selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue was primarily attributable to
leveraging its infrastructure over the higher revenue base.

The decrease in Portfolio Management’ s selling, general and administrative expenses resulted from an $11.9 million decrease in fees for
collection services provided by ARM, which was due to the reduction in purchases of accounts receivable, since these fees are based on
collections. Included in Portfolio Management’ s selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, was $12.7 million and $24.6 million, respectively, of intercompany expense from ARM, for services provided to Portfolio Management,
which was eliminated in consolidation.

Reimbursable costs and fees. Reimbursable costs and fees consist of court costs, legal fees and repossession fees, representing out-of-
pocket expenses that are reimbursed by our clients. Reimbursable costs and fees of $167.7
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million and $166.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, are recorded as both revenue and operating

expenses on the statement of operations.

Restructuring charges. During the six months ended June 30, 2011, we incurred restructuring charges of $15.3 million, related to
streamlining the cost structure of the Company’ s operations. The charges consisted primarily of costs associated with the closing of redundant
facilities, severance and professional fees. This compares to $6.4 million of restructuring charges for the six months ended June 30, 2010. The
severance accrual recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2011, included approximately $3.4 million related to termination benefits
provided to our former President and Chief Executive Officer, who remains as our Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased to $51.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, from
$55.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower depreciation resulting from more
assets becoming fully depreciated.

Other income (expense). Interest expense decreased to $43.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, from $45.8 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2010. Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 included $157,000 and $3.1 million,
respectively, of net losses from interest rate swap agreements and embedded derivatives. Other income, net for the six months ended June 30,
2011 and 2010 included approximately $220,000 of net losses and $352,000 of net gains, respectively, resulting from foreign exchange
contracts.

Income tax expense. For the six months ended June 30, 2011, we recorded income tax expense of $5.1 million on a pre-tax loss of $70.5
million, or an effective income tax rate of (7.3) percent. For the six months ended June 30, 2010, we recorded income tax expense of $4.9
million on a pre-tax loss of $34.8 million, or an effective income tax rate of (14.1) percent. The change in the effective income tax rate was
due primarily to the recognition of a valuation allowance on certain domestic net deferred tax assets and income tax expense to be paid in state

and foreign jurisdictions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of cash are cash flows from operations, bank borrowings, and equity and debt offerings. Cash has been used for
acquisitions, repayments of bank borrowings, purchases of equipment, and working capital to support our growth.
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The cash flow from our contingency collection business is dependent upon our ability to collect from consumers and businesses. Many
factors, including the economy and our ability to hire and retain qualified collectors and managers, are essential to our ability to generate cash
flows. The cash flows from our first-party collections and our CRM businesses are dependent upon the volume of business that our clients
place with us. Fluctuations in these factors that cause a negative impact on our business could have a material impact on our expected future
cash flows.

The capital and credit markets have experienced significant volatility in the recent past and if this continues, it is possible that our ability
to access the capital and credit markets may be limited. Our senior notes and senior subordinated notes are assigned ratings by certain rating
agencies. Changes in our business environment, operating results, cash flows, or financial position could impact the ratings assigned by these
rating agencies. Significant changes in assigned ratings could also significantly affect the costs of borrowing, which could have a material
impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

On July 7, 2011, APAC Customer Services, Inc. (“APAC”), a leader in global outsourced services and solutions, and OEP announced
that they had entered into a definitive merger agreement under which an affiliate of OEP will acquire 100% of APAC, through an all-cash
transaction with an aggregate equity value of approximately $470 million. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2011,
subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including approval of APAC’ s shareholders. OEP has announced that it will seek
to combine APAC with the Company to build market leadership in business process outsourcing and customer care solutions. The terms of
such combination have not been finalized and there can be no assurance that any such combination will be completed. We may have to borrow
money, incur liabilities, or sell or issue stock as part of the combination and we may not be able to do so on terms favorable to us. Additional
borrowings and liabilities may have a materially adverse effect on our liquidity and capital resources.

We have a senior credit facility that consists of a term loan ($479.5 million outstanding as of June 30, 2011) and a $75.0 million revolving
credit facility ($46.0 million outstanding as of June 30, 2011). Additionally, we have $165.0 million of floating rate senior notes and $200.0
million 11.875 percent senior subordinated notes outstanding. As a result, we are significantly leveraged.

Borrowings under the senior credit facility are collateralized by substantially all of our assets. The senior credit facility contains certain
financial and other covenants such as maintaining a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio, and includes restrictions
on, among other things, acquisitions, the incurrence of additional debt, investments, investments in purchased accounts receivable, disposition
of assets, liens and dividends and other distributions.

On March 25, 2011, we amended our senior credit facility to, among other things, adjust certain financial covenants, including increasing
certain maximum leverage ratios and decreasing certain minimum interest coverage
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ratios, extend the maturity date of the revolving credit facility from November 15, 2011 to December 31, 2012 and reduce the maximum
borrowing capacity to $75.0 million through November 15, 2011 and $67.5 million thereafter, and permit us to sell all or a portion of our
portfolios of accounts receivable. We believe we will be able to maintain compliance with such covenants over the next twelve months.

At June 30, 2011, our leverage ratio was 5.69, compared to the covenant maximum of 6.75, and our interest coverage ratio was 1.98,
compared to the covenant minimum of 1.65. We were in compliance with all required financial covenants under our senior credit facility and

we were not aware of any events of default as of June 30, 2011.

Our ability to maintain compliance with the financial covenants under our senior credit facility will be highly dependent on our results of
operations and, to the extent necessary, our ability to implement remedial measures such as further reductions in operating costs. If we were to
enter into an agreement with our lenders for future covenant compliance relief, such relief could result in additional fees and higher interest

expense.
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The economic and business climate in 2010 and into 2011 continued to be very difficult and there is uncertainty as to whether the
economic and business climate in 2011 will improve. In addition, other factors, such as the loss of a significant client or reduced client
volumes, may impact our ability to meet our debt covenants in the future. Therefore, no assurance can be given that we will be able to
maintain compliance with our financial covenants in future periods.

If an event of default, such as failure to comply with covenants, were to occur under the senior credit facility and we were not able to
obtain an amendment or waiver from the lenders, we would not be able to borrow under the revolving credit facility and the lenders would be
entitled to declare all amounts outstanding under the senior credit facility immediately due and payable and foreclose on the pledged assets. In
addition, the acceleration of the amounts due under the senior credit facility could be an event of default under our Senior Notes and Senior
Subordinated Notes and entitle the holders to accelerate the payment of these obligations. Under these circumstances, the acceleration of the
payment of our debt would have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our senior credit facility, as amended, does not give us the ability to use available excess cash flow to repurchase our senior notes and
senior subordinated notes. However, our senior credit facility, as amended, permits us to repurchase our senior notes and senior subordinated
notes out of the net cash proceeds of new equity issuances. We are aware that our senior notes and senior subordinated notes may trade at
substantial discounts to their face amounts. We or our stockholders may from time to time seek to retire or purchase our outstanding notes
through cash purchases and/or exchanges for equity securities, in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Our
stockholders who acquire such notes may seek to contribute them to us, for retirement, in exchange for the issuance of additional equity. The
amounts involved may be material.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities. Cash used in operating activities was $5.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011,
compared to cash provided by operating activities of $36.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. The change was primarily
attributable to the changes in working capital due to the timing of payments of operating items, as well as lower operating results for the six
months ended June 30, 2011.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities. Cash used in investing activities was $11.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011,
compared to cash provided by investing activities of $15.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. The change was primarily
attributable to $20.8 million of cash paid to acquire Protocol, as well as lower collections of purchased accounts receivable, net of purchases.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities. Cash provided by financing activities was $2.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011,
compared to cash used in financing activities of $65.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. The change was due primarily to
increased borrowings under our revolving credit facility during the six months ended June 30, 2011, partially due to the acquisition of
Protocol, compared to net repayments in the prior period.

Senior Credit Facility. Our senior credit facility is with a syndicate of financial institutions and consists of a term loan and a $75.0
million revolving credit facility. We are required to make quarterly principal repayments of approximately $1.5 million on the term loan until
its maturity in May 2013, at which time its remaining balance outstanding is due. We are also required to make quarterly prepayments of 75
percent of the excess cash flow from our purchased accounts receivable, and annual prepayments of 75 percent or 50 percent of our excess
annual cash
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flow, based on our leverage ratio, less the amounts paid during the year from the purchased accounts receivable excess cash flow
prepayments. The revolving credit facility requires no minimum principal payments until its maturity in December 2012. At June 30, 2011,
the balance outstanding on the term loan was $479.5 million and there was $46.0 million outstanding on the revolving credit facility. The
availability of the revolving credit facility is reduced by any unused letters of credit ($6.9 million at June 30, 2011). As of June 30, 2011, we
had $22.1 million of remaining availability under the revolving credit facility.
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All borrowings bear interest at an annual variable rate, based on either the prime rate (3.25 percent at June 30, 2011), the federal funds
rate (0.07 percent at June 30, 2011) or LIBOR (0.19 percent 30-day LIBOR at June 30, 2011) plus an applicable margin, which is based on the
type of rate and our funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) ratio, as defined in the loan
agreement, subject to certain interest rate minimum requirements. We are charged a quarterly commitment fee on the unused portion of the
revolving credit facility at an annual rate ranging from 0.50 percent to 0.75 percent. The effective interest rate on the senior credit facility was
approximately 7.78 percent and 9.18 percent for the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and 8.19 percent and 9.20
percent for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes. We have $165.0 million of floating rate senior notes due November 2013, referred to as the
Senior Notes, and $200.0 million of 11.875 percent senior subordinated notes due November 2014, referred to as the Senior Subordinated
Notes, collectively referred to as the Notes. The Notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a senior basis with respect to the Senior Notes
and on a senior subordinated basis with respect to the Senior Subordinated Notes, in each case by all of our existing and future domestic
restricted subsidiaries (other than certain subsidiaries and joint ventures engaged in financing the purchase of delinquent accounts receivable
portfolios and certain immaterial subsidiaries). The Senior Notes bear interest at an annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 4.875 percent, reset
quarterly.

For a description of the covenants and other material terms of the Notes, see “Item 7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Contractual Obligations. There have been no material changes, outside the ordinary course of our business, to our contractual obligations
as reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Market Risk

We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal course of business, including the impact of interest rate changes, foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations, changes in corporate tax rates, and inflation. We employ risk management strategies that may include the
use of derivatives, such as interest rate swap agreements, interest rate cap agreements, and foreign currency forwards and options to manage
these exposures. As of June 30, 2011, none of our derivatives were accounted for as hedges. We do not enter into derivatives for trading
purposes.

Foreign Currency Risk. Foreign currency exposures arise from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
and from foreign denominated revenue and profit translated into U.S. dollars. The primary currencies to which we are exposed include the
Philippine peso, the Canadian dollar, the British pound and the Australian dollar. Due to the size of the Philippine operations, we currently use
forward exchange contracts to limit potential losses in earnings or cash flows from adverse foreign currency exchange rate movements. These
contracts are entered into to protect against the risk that the eventual cash flows resulting from such contracts will be adversely affected by
changes in exchange rates. Our objective is to maintain economically balanced currency risk management strategies that provide adequate
downside protection.

Interest Rate Risk. At June 30,2011, we had $691.2 million in outstanding variable rate borrowings. A material change in interest rates
could adversely affect our operating results and cash flows. A 25 basis-point increase in interest rates could increase our annual interest

expense by $125,000 for each $50 million of variable debt outstanding for the entire year.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

General. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the
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accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We believe the following accounting policies and estimates are the most
critical and could have the most impact on our results of operations: goodwill, other intangible assets and purchase accounting, revenue
recognition for purchased accounts receivable, income taxes, and allowance for doubtful accounts. These are described in “Item 7.
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in note 2 to our 2010 financial statements,
both of which are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010. During the six months ended June 30,
2011, we did not make any material changes to our estimates or methods by which estimates are derived with regard to our critical accounting
policies.

Recently Issued Accounting Guidance

For a discussion of recently issued accounting guidance, see note 18 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this
Form 10-Q.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Included in Item 2, Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, of this Report on
Form 10-Q.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e), as of June 30, 2011.
Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this
Report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in reaching a reasonable level of assurance that the (i) information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’ s rules and forms and (ii) information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management including our principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, also conducted an evaluation of our
internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f), to determine whether any changes
occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2011, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting. Based on that evaluation, there were no such changes during the quarter ended June 30, 2011.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all controls systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected. Because of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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Part II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The Company is party, from time to time, to various legal proceedings, regulatory investigations, client audits and tax examinations
incidental to its business. The Company continually monitors these legal proceedings, regulatory investigations, client audits and tax
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examinations to determine the impact and any required accruals. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings™ in the Company’ s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Attorneys General:

From time to time, the Company receives subpoenas or other similar information requests from various states’ Attorneys General, requesting
information relating to the Company’ s debt collection practices in such states. The Company responds to such inquiries or investigations and
provides certain information to the respective Attorneys General offices. The Company believes it is in compliance with the laws of the states
in which it does business relating to debt collection practices in all material respects. However, no assurance can be given that any such
inquiries or investigations will not result in a formal investigation or an enforcement action. Any such enforcement actions could result in
fines as well as the suspension or termination of the Company’ s ability to conduct business in such states.

Other:

The Company is involved in other legal proceedings, regulatory investigations, client audits and tax examinations from time to time in the
ordinary course of its business. Management believes that none of these other legal proceedings, regulatory investigations or tax examinations
will have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in
Part I, “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, referred to as the
“2010 Form 10-K”, which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. Except as set forth below, the risk factors
in our 2010 Form 10-K have not materially changed. The risks described herein and in our 2010 Form 10-K are not the only risks we face.
Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

The potential combination with APAC presents additional risks to the Company.

On July 7, 2011, APAC Customer Services, Inc. (“APAC”), a leader in global outsourced services and solutions, and OEP announced
that they had entered into a definitive merger agreement under which an affiliate of OEP will acquire 100% of APAC, through an all-cash
transaction with an aggregate equity value of approximately $470 million. The transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2011,
subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, including approval of APAC’ s shareholders. OEP has announced that it will seek
to combine APAC with the Company to build market leadership in business process outsourcing and customer care solutions. The terms of
such combination have not been finalized and there can be no assurance that any such combination will be completed. We may have to borrow
money, incur liabilities, or sell or issue stock as part of the combination and we may not be able to do so on terms favorable to us. Additional
borrowings and liabilities may have a materially adverse effect on our liquidity and capital resources. Completing any such combination
involves a number of risks, including diverting management’ s attention from our daily operations, the use of additional management,
operational and financial resources, system conversions, and the inability to maintain key pre-combination relationships with customers,
suppliers and employees. We might not be able to successfully integrate the combination into our business or operate the combined businesses
profitably, and we may be subject to unanticipated problems and liabilities of APAC.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
On May 19, 2011, the Company issued 9,812 shares of Series B-2 19 percent Preferred Stock and 132,823 shares of Class L Common
Stock to the sellers as partial consideration for the acquisition of Protocol. In addition, the Company paid cash consideration of $20.8 million,

subject to certain post-closing adjustments.

The sale and issuance of the securities in the transaction described above was exempt from registration under the Securities Act in
reliance upon Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. The Company relied on representations made by the sellers that they were acquiring the
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securities for investment and not with a view to the distribution of such securities and that they had such knowledge and experience in
business and financial matters that they were capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the securities, among others.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None

Item 4. [Removed and Reserved]

Item S. Other Information

(a) The information set forth under “Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds” is incorporated herein by
reference.

(b) Not applicable
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Item 6. Exhibits
12 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
* 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act.
*31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act.

* 321 Certification of the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* 322 Certification of the Company’ s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101 The following financial statements from the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 15, 2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (iv) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

* This prospectus supplement does not contain all of the exhibits filed with the Company’ s quarterly report for the period ended June
30, 2011. Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1 and 32.2 are not filed with and should not be deemed a part of this prospectus supplement
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
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NCO Group, Inc.

Date: August 15,2011 By: /s/Ronald A. Rittenmeyer

Ronald A. Rittenmeyer
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Date: August 15,2011 By: /s/John R. Schwab

John R. Schwab
Executive Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial and accounting officer)
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit No. Description
12 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
* 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act.
* 31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-14(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act.
* 321 Certification of the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
* 322 Certification of the Company’ s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101 The following financial statements from the Company’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended

June 30, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 15, 2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations; (iii) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (iv) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

This prospectus supplement does not contain all of the exhibits filed with the Company’ s quarterly report for the period ended June
30, 2011. Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1 and 32.2 are not filed with and should not be deemed a part of this prospectus supplement
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NCO Group, Inc.
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
(in thousands, except for ratios)
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For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2011(1)(2) 2010(1)(2) 2011(D)3) 2010(1)(3)
Earnings:
Add:
Loss before income taxes and noncontrolling interest $ (29,069) $ (23,454) $ (70,465) $ (34,752)
Fixed charges 26,705 27,798 54,064 57,338
(2,364) 4,344 (16,401) 22,586
Subtract:
Interest capitalized 97 = 195 =
Distributions to noncontrolling interest holders 1,200 1,472 2,083 2,736
1,297 1,472 2,278 2,736
Earnings $ 3,661) § 2,872 % (18,679) $ 19,850
Fixed Charges:
Interest expense $ 21,165 $ 22,156 % 42,993 $ 45,757
Interest capitalized 97 - 195 -
Portion of rentals deemed to be interest 5,443 5,642 10,876 11,581
$ 26,705 $ 27,798 % 54,064  $ 57,338
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (0.1)x 0.1x (0.3)x 0.3x

(1)  For the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company’ s ratio of earnings to fixed charges indicated a less than one-
to-one coverage. The deficiency was a result of earnings that were $30.3 million and $24.9 million less than fixed charges for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $72.7 million and $37.5 million less than fixed charges for the six months
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(2) Loss before income taxes and noncontrolling interest includes restructuring charges of $3.1 million and $4.9 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and an $11.2 million write-down of the value of certain portfolios of purchased
accounts receivable for the three months ended June 30, 2011.

(3) Loss before income taxes and noncontrolling interest includes restructuring charges of $15.3 million and $6.4 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and a $29.8 million write-down of the value of certain portfolios of purchased accounts
receivable for the six months ended June 30, 2011.
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